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Corporate Information
ARER
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Mr. Wong, John Ying Man

Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin

Mr. Mok, Kin Hing
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Mr. Xiong, Zhengfeng

Ms. Li, Yinghong

Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit

Independent Non-Executive Directors
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PRINCIPAL BANKERS
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Shanghai Commercial Bank Limited
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Philip K.H. Wong, Kennedy Y.H. Wong & Co.

AUDITORS

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Lo, Wai Keung Eric

REGISTERED OFFICE
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Hong Kong
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae, aged 80, is Chairman of the
Company. After obtaining a Bachelor of Engineering Degree
(Chemical Engineering) in Canada in 1959, he spent three
years as a lecturer at the Hong Kong Technical College until
1964 when he founded the Company.

Mr. Wong, John Ying Man, aged 50, was appointed
to the board (“Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of the
Company as the executive Director on 15 September 1997.
He graduated from the University of Manchester Institute
of Science & Technology in 1987 and joined the Company
in the same year. He worked as an engineer, project
coordinator, engineering manager and then general manager
for operations.

Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin, aged 50, son of Mr. Wong,
Wilson Kin Lae, was appointed as a non-executive Director
on 18 July 2001 and re-designated as an executive Director
on 19 April 2002. He became a deputy executive chairman
on 19 April 2007. Mr. Wong holds a Bachelor’'s Degree in
Chemical Engineering and a Master Degree in Economics.
He is a U.S. Certified Public Accountant (CPA), a Certified
Management Accountant (CMA) and is certified in financial
management (CFM). He is an independent non-executive
Director of Modern Beauty Salon Holdings Limited (Stock
code: 0919) and Nan Nan Resources Enterprise Limited
(Stock code: 1229), both companies whose shares are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”).

Mr. Mok, Kin Hing, aged 53, was alternate Director to Mr.
Wong, Wilson Kin Lae, the Chairman and executive Director
of the Company until 1st July 2008 when he was appointed
as an executive Director with effect from 1 July 2008.
Mr. Mok joined the Company as a production planning
coordinator in 1990. He was appointed as a production
manager in 1993 and general manager of Raymond (Panyu
Nansha) Electrical Appliances Development Co. Ltd. in 1996.
Since 2005, Mr. Mok has been appointed as a member
of Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference in
Guangzhou City, Nansha District.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

AEEEREREEEB/N

Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit, aged 52, was appointed
a non-executive Director on 26 May 2014. Prior to the
appointment, he was an alternate Director of Dr. Wong,
Philip Kin Hang (retired non-executive director) on 4 July
2008. Mr. Wong is a Registered Architect and Authorized
Person in Hong Kong. He also a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Architects. Mr. Wong is the founder and executive
director of Hong Kong Wine Vault.

Mr. Xiong, Zhengfeng, aged 46, was appointed as a
non-executive Director on 3 January 2011. Mr. Xiong
graduated from the Department of Computer Science of
Nankai University and obtained his bachelor degree in
science in July 1992. He then obtained his master degree
in Economics from Nankai University School of Economics
in July 1995. Mr. Xiong joined China North Industries
Corporation in August 1995 and took up the post of
deputy general manager of China North Industries Xiamen
Corporation from October 1999 to November 2000. Mr.
Xiong is currently the chairman and executive director of
AKM Industrial Company Limited (“AKM Industrial”) (Stock
code: 1639), a company whose shares are listed on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. In November 2000, Mr.
Xiong joined Silver City International (Holdings) Ltd., (“Silver
City”) the substantial shareholder (as defined in the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”)) of AKM
Industrial, as assistant General Manager and was promoted
to the position of Deputy General Manager in March 2004.
He is a director of Alpha Luck Industrial Limited (“Alpha
Luck”), the substantial shareholder (as defined in the Listing
Rules) of AKM Industrial since March 2001(Alpha Luck is the
subsidiary fully-funded by Silver City, and Silver City is AKM
Industrial’s beneficial owner). Mr. Xiong also serves as a
director of AKM Electronics Industrial (Panyu) Ltd. and AKM
Electronic Technology (Suzhou) Company Limited.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Ms. Li, Yinghong, aged 53, was appointed as a non-
executive Director with effect from 4 July 2008. Ms. Li is a
non-executive director of AKM Industrial. In July 1985, she
obtained her Bachelor Degree in Corporate Finance and
Accounting from Jiangxi College of Finance. In May 2008,
she obtained a Master Degree in International Management
from Australia National University. From March 2001 to
April 2003, she was the director of Norinco International
Cooperation Company Limited, a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange in China. In June 2003, Ms. Li
joined Silver City International (Holdings) Ltd. as the director
and deputy general manager.

Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung, aged 73, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director in 1988. He is
an entrepreneur with extensive international experience in
garment manufacturing and trading. He is the founder of the
Onwel Group of Companies in 1969 and has been holding
the position of executive chairman since 1982. Also, Mr.
Leung is the executive chairman of Fairtex Muay Fitness
and Equipment (Hong Kong) Limited effected from 25
October 2013. He is an independent non-executive director
of Dickson Concepts (International) Limited (Stock Code:
0113), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da, aged 55, joined in 1994 as
an independent non-executive Director. Mr. Fan holds a
Master’s Degree in Business Administration from the United
States of America. He is the chairman and managing director
of AsialLink Capital Limited. He is also an independent non-
executive director of Technovator International Limited (Stock
Code: 1206), Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. (Stock
Code: 0220), Shanghai Industrial Urban Development Group
Limited (Stock Code: 0563), Renhe Commercial Holdings
Company Limited (Stock Code: 1387), Tenfu Cayman
Holdings Ltd. (Stock Code: 6868), Citic Resources Limited
(Stock Code: 1205), Guodian Technology & Environment
Group Corporation Limited (Stock Code: 1296), Hong Kong
Resources Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code: 2882),
China Development Bank International Investment Ltd.
(Stock Code: 1062), LT Commercial Real Estate Limited
(Stock Code: 0112), Neo-Neon Holdings Ltd. (Stock Code:
1868) and CGN New Energy Holdings Co. Ltd. (Stock Code:
1811), all listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

AEEEREREEEB/N

Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming, aged 79, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 2 July 2004. Mr.
Ng was previously a non-executive director of Dah Sing
Financial Holdings Limited (Stock code: 0440), a company
whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange. He has
over 40 years of experience in hire purchase and leasing
finance.

Mr. Lo, Wilson Kwong Shun, aged 42, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 1 January
20183. He has more than 15 years of working experience
in investment banking and advising on corporate finance.
He is currently a Deputy General Manager of Guotai Junan
Capital Limited and independent non-executive directors
of Kingdom Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 0528), Wuzhou
International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1369) and
Huiyin Household Appliances (Holdings) Co., Ltd. (Stock
Code: 1280), companies listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He also has three
years of experience in the field of auditing and accounting.
He is a member of the American Institute of CPA, a member
of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountant and
a member of CFA Institute. Mr. Lo obtained his bachelor
of commerce degree from University of British Columbia in
1995.
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| am pleased to present the annual results of Raymond
Industrial Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2015.

During the financial year (“FY”) of 2015, the Group continued
to face challenge of increasing operating costs and shortage
of skilled labour. As RMB continued to depreciate during the
year, all of the customers used this as an excuse to request
reduction in selling prices from the Group. Consequently,
the Group’s effort to improve the Group’s profitability and
gross margins was offset by the reduction in selling price
due to RMB depreciation. Further, the Group’s turnover
suffered from weakened global market demand, especially
the weakened demand in air purifiers market in China.
As a result, the Group’s consolidated turnover decreased
to HK$988,449,114 in FY2015, a decrease of 4.49%
compared with previous year. Nevertheless, the Group has
benefited from the closure of a China based subsidiary
and repatriated the capital investment in this subsidiary.
As a result, the net profit increased to HK$36,328,469,
representing an increase of 28.43% compared with the net
profit of HK$28,286,391 in FY2014. Cash generated from
operations was HK$93,752,138. Cash and cash equivalents
at 31 December 2015 was HK$244,472,180 (with
HK$38,053,561 dividend paid out during FY2015) compared
with HK$213,008,820 at the beginning of the year. The
positive operating cash flow and substantial cash balances
allow the Group to continue to pay satisfactory amounts
of dividends and invest more in automation processes and
advanced technology.

In FY2015, the Group invested HK$18,788,932 to set up
new semi-automated production lines for a series of new
products, and bought more double injection moulding
machines to support development of higher quality grooming
products. Moreover, the Group purchased new precision
cutting machines and related intellectual property rights in
order to develop a new series of men shaver. In comparison,
the capital expenditure of the Group was HK$40,508,627
in FY2014. The Group hopes the continuingly increased
investment in advanced technology allows the management
team to be able to develop more high end products with
higher gross profits margins products for our customers.

The Group’s net profit in FY2015 was HK$36,328,469,
with basic earnings per share of 7.65 HK cents (net profit in
FY2014 was HK$28,286,391, with basic earnings per share
of 6.04 HK cents).

Chairman’s Statement
TE®RE

AARAREFNREXZARLDF((XLQE ) REKE QA
(B AW BZE2016F 12 A1 BIEFEZFEEE -

2015 FHBFE ([MBE]) AEBEEZE|EENR
FAURBRZ AEEB A DR ROKE - ARBEST
BERE  AERFPHUARBREASAERAEERE
EmEE - Alt - AEEERSSERZFMEFEMAED
MEH - HFAEEERETERARBRZAEAMGKTEFRE
Frifss - B ASBEEBEXIEEMISHES - L
AR E M ZERFEEMIZRREMX R L - B - A%
BER2015F BB 2 476 & RBP4 =816 988,449,114 7L
B FRIBIMALL TR T 4.49% ° B2 « REBESHENER—
MEFHOMBARYHARTEZMNBATNELREE + K
EE 2015 F T 2555 A58 36,328,469 7T © #2014
F R R HDFOE FI7S 15 28,286,391 7T © 1E0128.43% © 4%
BEAZIRS ABI093,752,138 7T - 2015812 531 H
ZRENIREEETEE BB 244,472,180 7T (74 2015 F B
REF B IR S5 38,053,561 70) @ HHLEAF YIRS MR
S EEER 5B 213,008,820 c EREELZESRN
FENIR S EREAREFL ] UESRESKREMENR
B B IENEESEELR NAENRIRIER
HIRE o

2015 F B - NEEFEE B 18,788,932 LA — R 75
MHMERESFESEER  ARAIRERESMEN
EHMMEHERMAEE ZEE)THERH - Rtz
AEBEMATHE -—RISHFHFNIELTEZMBAZTH TR
EREYRI RS ES A R AR MEERE - L2 T -
SER 2014 FHBFRNE AR BB 40,508,627 7T ° 2N
SEFZFEBERENTELENE ENIRE  AIEREREE
BATFREEZ SRS TFNER -

7K & B 20155 B B F i Bl B 8 #5 36,328,469 7T
A% B AN & R B 8 7.65 10 (2014 4F B B 3% % 71| A B i
28,286,391 7T © BRAKREFER6.0410) »

“T-AEFHR | NREEERRF 4 7



Chairman’s Statement
TEHE

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES AND
COMMITMENT

WORKPLACE QUALITY

The Group focused on 4 areas to enhance good workplace
quality:

(i) Working conditions: The Group’s labour policies were
in full compliance with labour laws of China and Hong
Kong applicable to the staff in the corresponding
locations. The working hours, benefits and welfares
of all staff and workers were also in compliance with
the corresponding local labour laws and fulfilled
the working conditions requirement from our major
customers and US/European retail stores, in which
regular audits are conducted by 3rd parties such as
ITS and SGS every year.

(ii) Health and Safety: The Group was in compliance
with labour laws of China and Hong Kong applicable
to the staff in the corresponding locations. Key
occupational health and safety KPIs are illustrated in
the chart below:

N EEERARE
THREER

REBEREIAT 4 EHBENRE TERENER

(i)

THERR : AEENSTIHRRTEFEERARTE
EEMEEREREBNBETEES A REES
TEP - FIE B TMT AR TIERZ - fFEMEF
BHaENS DAY - R MEDSFEHER
E=77(Plan : ITS - SGS) HHMIETERNEIER
PHBETERHTIERENER -

BERZE: AEEZE2NEERRNTEEENE
BlEEMEETEE S TR REFBS A
BERERL2HNEREMERFELH X

FY 2015 vs

FY 2014

20155

FY 2015 FY 2014 B B

2015 20144 2014 F

BB B BB AL

(%)

Number of work injuries TE&E 28 35 -20.00%
Medical Expenses due to TIHEEENEERS

work injuries (HKD) (%) 74,536.77 84,231.22 -11.51%

Management of the Group was encouraged by safer
work place provided to the staff in FY2015, which
was evidenced by fewer work injuries and lower
medical expenses.

8 RAYMOND Industrial Ltd. | Annual Report 2015
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(i)

(iv)

Development and Training: The Group provided
updated Listing Rules training for directors and senior
executives, and also provided training for middle
management, regular employees and production line
workers. The corresponding key development and
training KPls are illustrated in the chart below:

(i

Chairman’s Statement
TE®RE

BREFEI AREERESMEMITHRAERMH
RAMH LRI mATREERE  ERE
T UREESRTARESEAERE - BRAAE
BEERE IS EOBERERIERB2H TR

Average

training

hours per

No. of employee

employees BEEETY

BE A S

(hrs)

(/NE)

Middle management PREIRE 417 30
Regular employees ERET 393 45
Production line workers AESTA 2,172 75

Labour Standard: The Group adopted a recruitment
policy that prevented the hiring of child labour and
forced labour. The Group also encouraged the
workers to form labour unions. A labour union was
formed at our Nansha, Panyu factory and union
representatives held regular meetings throughout
the year to communicate issues that could improve
workers’ morale, upgrade the living quarters and
working environment, and reported workers/
management disputes to the Group’s senior
management.

(v)

BTEA: AEERRNBEHRENLEFET
KBS T - AEETFEEE TR TEAMH - &
MEESEEPEEREMNE TOKY T T2AH -
TeRXEFHERTENER B AHERESE
TTIELER  ZMEEBRE - THERRENHEE
WAREEEREERTAMERA SRS
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Chairman’s Statement
TEHE

ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE

The Group focused on aspects that would enhance
environmental protection and adopted policies that would
lower CO2 emissions during the manufacturing processes,
minimize excessive use of resources such as electricity,
diesel, water and paper.

RERERR
AEBLIRDRARETHNAE - KNTRELES
12 SRR P BUA R AT A B FE - 460 - K
RARREEROBE -

() CO2 emissions: The chart below illustrates the type (i) ZEALEREBEIN - TRY B P E SR AR R Pk
of emissions and respective emission data. The HIE - NEBEREER T IRIE S IREER
Group will continue to strive for measures to lower HITEHE o
CO2 emissions.

FY 2015 vs
FY 2014
2015F
FY 2015 FY 2014 M EE
20154 2014 4 2014 £
B BTEF BB ARLE
(%)
Electricity £
(kilotonnes CO2) (FomE—&1bhR) 17.60 16.96 3.76%
Oil J
(kilotonnes CO2) (FAME = &1bhR) 0.26 0.39 -32.42%
Gas E=
(kilotonnes CO2) (FAME—&1bhx) 0.02 0.02 -4.13%
(i) Use of Resources: The chart below illustrates the (i) BRER - BRAERE 2015 FHBFAFERH KX

type of energy and energy consumption by type

B 2014 FM B F L B REE L SRR

throughout FY2015 and shows comparative data EMEHRAIRTX :
with that of FY2014:
FY 2015 vs
FY 2014
2015
FY 2015 FY 2014 B e
20154 20144 2014 £
B BYEF BB ARLE
(%)
Electricity g
(GWh) (FIRE/E) 22.43 21.62 3.76%
oil S8
(tonnes) NITD) 82.89 122.65 -32.42%
Gas E=) 9,901.05 10,325.10 -“4.11%
(kgs) (=)
10 RAYMOND Industrial Ltd. | Annual Report 2015



The Group was pleased with the environmental protection
performance as our operating team reduced its usage on
non-renewable resources in FY2015. (Total consumption of
oil reduced from 122.65 tonnes in FY2014 to 82.89 tonnes
in FY2015)

Although CO2 emission due to the use of electricity slightly
increased in FY2015 (as some equipment which was run
by oil was replaced by those that used electricity), the total
CQO2 emission (electricity + oil) was 17.86 kilotonnes (17.60
+ 0.26) in FY2015 which was similar to such emission of
17.35 kilotonnes (16.96 + 0.39) in FY2014.

OPERATING PRACTICES

The Group focused on formulating best operating
procedures of work flow in order to enhance the professional
conduct of the management and staff by tightening
corporate governance policies and setting guidelines for
preventing staff and workers from committing frauds and
engaging in illegal activities.

(i) Anti-corruption policy was straightly enforced
among all management personnel and all suppliers
in the Group’s supply chain. The Group was not
aware of any legal cases regarding corruption of the
Group’s management and employees. The Group
also has an independent internal audit department
reporting directly to the chairman of the Group’s
audit committee and has a whistleblowing system to
notify the audit committee of any potential fraud and
malpractices.

(ii) Product Safety: The Group has a policy to work
closely with customers to cooperate on any recalls
and safety/health related issue; and the Group has a
quality system that handled customers (and related
products) complaints. Root cause analysis would
be conducted on each major customer complaint to
avoid re-occurance of product defects.

(iii) Risk Management: The Group has updated its policy

on risk management, and the Board, the Audit

Committee and the Management team will work with

external consultants and auditors to identify potential

risks which have not been previously identified.

Chairman’s Statement
TE®RE
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Chairman’s Statement
TEHE

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

The Group encouraged its management and staff to help
creating a better community. Programs which aimed to build
a better community were implemented initiatively through
various kinds of activities:

U

(i)

(i)

(v)

Encourage the use of recycled paper: The Group
has begun a program to use more recycled paper in
operations including printing interim & annual report
booklets. The Group is also encouraging and working
with customers to print product instruction books by
using recycled paper materials.

Investment in new talents: The Group continued
to sponsor programs at Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and members of the Group gave guest
lectures at Hong Kong Polytechnic University during
FY2015.

Education involvement: Members of the Group’s
management participated in fundraising charity
concert organized by the Hong Kong Philharmonic
Society to support community programs for
young musicians from less privileged families; and
participated in Intimacy of Creativity, an international
music composer symposium organized by HKUST.

Corporate Governance: Members of the Group’s
management founded the HKINED Asscoation
(Hong Kong Independent Non-Executive Directors
Association) in October 2015 in Hong Kong to
promote better corporate governance in Greater
China.

Create a better Society: Members of the Group’s
management actively participated in fundraising
event for the Hong Kong Correctional Services to
support education programs for prison inmates.

Wong, Wilson Kin Lae
Chairman
Hong Kong, 23 March 2016
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL POSITION

The liquidity position of the Group was satisfactory. Its
current ratio was 3.08 as of 31 December 2015, compared
with 2.85 as of 31 December 2014. The gearing ratio was
0.31 as of 31 December 2015 (31 December 2014: 0.35)
and it was computed by the total liabilities over the net
assets.

During FY2015, the Group’s trade receivables turnover
stood at 68 days, compared with 73 days in FY2014. The
inventory turnover in FY2015 was 46 days, compared with
58 days in FY2014.

Bank balances and cash were HK$244,472,180 as of 31
December 2015 (2014: HK$213,008,820), representing an
increase of HK$31,463,360 when compared with the figures
in the previous year, which was mainly due to decrease in
accounts receivable and inventory.

There were no bank borrowings as of 31 December 2015,
and the Group’s debt to equity ratio was 31% as of 31
December 2015 (2014: 33%).

The Group had no contingent liabilities as of 31 December
2015 (2014: Nil).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year, the capital structure of the Company has
not been changed with details shown in note 20(a) to the
financial statements.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board of the Company has proposed the payment
of a final dividend of 4 HK cents per ordinary share for
the year ended 31 December 2015. The proposed final
dividend, if approved by the shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting, will be paid on 14 June 2016 to
the shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on 6 June 2016.

BEEEBNWR DM

B BUIRIR

KEFBNESTREBSAME - R20156F 12318 » A&
BzE&REEKAE308 HR2014F12831H £2.85°
AEBzEREBENL X A031(2014F12 A318 ¢
0.35) ' sTEAEE LB ERERIANEETE -

R2015 FHEF - AEBMEWARIEES R A68 K + MLt
EFMT73R 2016 F R FEFFE 46K AL E
FH)58K °

R2015F12A31H RITEH KR &8 A B K
244,472,180 7T (2014 4F : 7% 213,008,820 7T) * thEFF
HY FFH T 531,463,360 T - T ERE AEWEBEMTER

Do

R2015F12A31H AEBFETEFETER KAEE
MR2015F 12 A31H 2 B E#m b ¥ B31% (20144 -
33%) °

R2015F 12 A31H » AEEWERABFE(20145F  £) o

B

KEFERRNBZERNEEWESE) - FIBHRIEREMN
¥ 20(a) °

RKERE

BEEEFZREHE2015F12 A1 B IL R B FR Y
BEABEML EE 2 AR EALAERITZRER
FREEMNRRAE - WEEN2016F6 A 14 BIRE TR
20164 6 A 6 AERERMM £ 2R -

“T-AEFHR | MREEARRR 4

13



14

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEEBNmR DM

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed for
the following periods:

(1) For the purpose of determining shareholders who are
entitled to attend and vote at the forthcoming annual
general meeting to be held on Wednesday, 25 May
2016 (“2016 AGM”), the Register of Members of the
Company will be closed from Friday, 20 May 2016
to Wednesday, 25 May 2016, both days inclusive. In
order to be qualified for attending and voting at the
2016 AGM, all transfer documents, accompanied
by the relevant share certificates, should be lodged
for registration with the Company’s share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
at Rooms 1712-1716, 17/F., Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not later than 4:30
p.m. on Thursday, 19 May 2016.

For the purpose of determining shareholders who
are qualified for the final dividend, the Register
of Members of the Company will be closed from
Thursday, 2 June 2016 to Monday, 6 June 2016,
both days inclusive. In order to be qualified for the
final dividend, all transfer documents, accompanied
by the relevant share certificates, should be lodged
for registration with the Company’s share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
at Rooms 1712-1716, 17/F., Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not later than 4:30
p.m. on Wednesday, 1 June 2016.

CHARGES ON ASSETS

The Group had no charges on assets as of 31 December
2015 (2014: Nil).

FUTURE PROSPECTS

The Group expects to face similar challenges in FY2016
due to the expected fluctuation in RMB exchange rate
and shortage of skilled labour in China, etc. Despite the
continuingly unfavourable macro-environment anticipated for
the OEM manufacturing industry, the Group will continue to
invest in new technology which enables the Group to launch
new innovative products. The Group expects to place even
more resources to expand the Mainland China market as
we continue to see market weaknesses in Japan, USA
and Europe in FY2015, at the same time seeking stronger
partnership with key strategic customers to increase the
turnover of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

During FY2015, the Group successfully launched several
new air purifiers and a successful grooming product line
and is in the process of developing a series of men shavers
with another innovative cutting system to be launched in
FY2016. The Group expects to launch more air purifiers and
grooming products in FY2016 as our core product strategy. In
order to speed up products launching, the Group invested in
upgrading the “Smart Nexus” of various operating systems,
including “Smart” logistic system linking to ERP system
and Cloud database; “Smart” robotic system in facilitating
injection moulding and paint spraying processes; and a
“Smart” work environment that increase the co-dependency
relationship between people, machines and automations.
The Group will continue to upgrade “Smart” operating
systems to enhance the efficiency and effectiveness of our
operations.

Finally, the Board has instructed the management to set
certain KPIs in FY2016 to focus on mitigating financial
and operating risks in important areas, and to work with
our auditor and outside consultants to identify risks that
were previously not identified, in order to manage risk
more effectively. The Group has installed new Firewalls
and tightened Cloud security to mitigate cyber risk in early
FY2016.

STAFF

The Group currently employs approximately 36 Hong Kong
staff members and provides them with the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme. Our factory in the Mainland China
employs approximately 400 staff members, and workers
employed directly or indirectly ranged from 2,600 to 3,000
persons during the year. Remuneration is determined
by reference to their qualifications, experiences and
performances.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend the Board’s
appreciation to all our staff for their hard work and dedication
throughout the year.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Most of the Group’s transactions were conducted in the
United States dollars, British Pound, Hong Kong dollars
and Renminbi. The Group does not foresee any substantial
exposure to foreign currency fluctuations and thus use of
financial instruments for exchange rate hedging purpose is
not considered.
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Report of the Directors
EEEWE

The Board has the pleasure to submit the annual report
together with the audited financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2015.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company is incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong
and has its registered office and principal place of business
at Rooms 1801-1813, 18th Floor, Grandtech Centre, 8 On
Ping Street, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES & BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is sale of electrical
home appliances. The principal activities and other
particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company are set out in
note 25 to the financial statements. Further discussion and
analysis of these activities as required by Schedule 5 to the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a discussion
of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group and
an indication of likely future developments in the Group’s
business, can be found in the Chairmen’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis set out on pages 7
to 15 of this annual report. This discussion forms part of the
directors’ report.

Review on the Group’s business performance
- Analysis using financial
key performance indicators
—  Discussion on the Company’s
environmental policies
and performance
—  Discussion on the Company’s
compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations that
have a significant impact
on the Company
Principal risks and uncertainties facing
the Group
Future prospects of the Group

Pages 7 to 15
Pages 7 and 13

Pages 10 to 11

Pages 8, 9 and 11

Page 14

Pages 14 to 15
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KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Company maintains good relationships with its
employees by taking all practicable measures, including
but not limited to improving, reviewing and updating its
polices on remuneration and benefits, training, occupational
health and safety, to ensure that all the staff are reasonably
remunerated.

The Company is in good relationship with its customers
and is always improving its communication mechanism with
customers to ensure all the complaints or feedback from its
customers can be informed by the Company in time and the
customers receive service of high quality.

The Company maintains long-period good cooperation with
its domestic and overseas suppliers, which are of good
reputation in the industry.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of revenues from sales of goods and
purchases attributable to the Group’s major customers and
suppliers during the financial year are as follows:

Report of the Directors
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BHES  FFRHEB2EERE
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Percentage of
the Group’s total
rEEzEHBSE

Revenue from

sales of goods Purchases
SHEERHBA SRR
The largest customer BAEP 27% N/A @
Five largest customers in aggregate AREFEET 93% N/A @
The largest supplier A IER N/A g 15%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate ARHEREET N/A 7@ 36%

None of directors, their associates or any shareholders of the
Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued shares) had any interest in
these major customers and suppliers during the year.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2015 and the state of affairs of the Group as at that date are
set out in the financial statements on pages 55 to 119.
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Report of the Directors
EEERS

RECOMMENDED DIVIDEND

An interim dividend of 2 HK cents per share was paid for
the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: 2 HK cents).
The Board proposed the payment of a final dividend of 4
HK cents per share (2014: 4 HK cents per share and 2 HK
cents per share for special dividend) in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2015.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

No charitable donation was made by the Group during the year.

ISSUED SHARES

Details of the movements in the issued shares of the
Company during the year are set out in note 20(a) to the
financial statements.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s shares
during the year ended 31 December 2015.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of
this report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae (Chairman)
Mr. Wong, John Ying Man

Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin

Mr. Mok, Kin Hing

Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. Xiong, Zhengfeng

Ms. Li, Yinghong

Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung

Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da

Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming

Mr. Lo, Wilson Kwong Shun

Alternate Director:
Mr. Zhang, Yuankun
(alternate to Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae)
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

During the year and up to the date of this report, Mr. Wong,
Wilson Kin Lae, Mr. Wong, John Ying Man, Mr. Wong,
Raymond Man Hin, Mr. Mok, Kin Hing and Mr. Zhang,
Yuankun are also directors in certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Other directors of the Company’s subsidiaries
during the year and up to the date of this report include: Mr.
Hau, Chi Yung, Mr. Huang, Jingxi, Mr. Law, Anthony Kwok
Yung, Ms. Luk, Yin Yee and Mr. Yan, Yong Sheng.

In accordance with article 112 of the Company’s articles of
association (“Articles of Association”), Mr. Wong, John
Ying Man; Ms. Li, Yinghong; Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming and Mr. Lo,
Wilson Kwong Shun will retire from the Board by rotation at
the forthcoming 2016 AGM. They will offer themselves for
re-election at the 2016 AGM.

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company or its subsidiaries which is
not determinable within one year without payment of
compensation other than statutory compensation.

The non-executive Directors do not have specific terms
of appointment but are subject to retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Articles of Association.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2015, the interests of the Directors
in the shares of the Company, its subsidiaries and other
associated corporations (within the meaning of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) as recorded
in the register maintained by the Company under Section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules were as follows:
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Report of the Directors

EERHE
DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND EERAE QT ZRM RAERER GO RERS (5)
UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)
() Interests in issued shares () BITROER
Number of shares
R#E
% of total
Issued
Personal Family  Corporate Share Shares
Capacity Interests Interests Interests Options Total  BFHET
&% fEAEE FEEE  EEER BiE Bt ROESE
(thp 1) (thg 4)
(1) (34)
Executive Directors
HiTEE
Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae Interest of spouse & Interest - 150,000 105,875,181 - 106,025,181 22.21%
BEAIRAE of a controlled corporation (Note 2) (Note 3)
BB R R R AR AR AR R (#2) (33)
Mr. Wong, John Ying Man Benelicial owner 11,839,448 - - 6,800,000 18,639,448 3.90%
BREUE ERBBA
Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin Beneficial owner 15,417,972 - - 800,000 16,217,972 3.40%
BENELE ERBAA
Mr. Mok, Kin Hing Beneficial owner 625,000 - - 5800000 6,425,000 1.35%
SREgE ERBAA
Non-Executive Directors
FHTEE
Mr. Xiong, Zhengfeng Beneficial owner - - - 1,950,000 1,950,000 0.41%
BRIFEEE ERBAA
Ms. Li, Yinghong Beneflcial owner - - - 4,450,000 4,450,000 0.93%
M LT ERBBA
Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit Beneficial owner - - - 1,350,000 1,350,000 0.28%
BAGRE ERBAA
Incependent Non-Executive Directors
BUFHTEE
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung Beneficial owner 4,294,300 - - 393,800 4,688,100 0.98%
ZEERE ERBAA
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da Beneficial owner 644,300 - - 993,800 1,638,100 0.34%
EEEE ERBAA
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming Beneficial owner 1,323,800 - - - 1,323,800 0.28%
hBR%E ERlBA
Mr. Lo, Wilson Kwong Shun Beneficial owner 300,000 - - - 300,000 0.06%
BREERE ERBAA
Alternate Director
HEE
Mr. Zhang, Yuankun Beneficial owner 2,630,000 - - - 2,630,000 0.55%
FEEE ERBAA
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

(i)  Interests in issued shares (Continued)
Notes:
(1) The shares are registered under the names of the Directors

who are the beneficial shareholders.

2) Ms. Sun, Amelia Kwing Hai, spouse of Mr. Wong, Wilson
Kin Lae, is the beneficial shareholder.

Q) Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae is the beneficial shareholder of
91.7% of the issued shares of Broadbridge Enterprises
Limited and Diamond-Harvest Limited, which owned
27,993,421 and 77,881,760 shares respectively in the
Company as at 31 December 2015.

(4) Share options are granted to the Directors under the
Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme”) approved by the
shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting on 6
June 2003, details of which are set out in the section
headed “Share Option Scheme” below. The Scheme was
terminated on 5 June 2013.

All the interests disclosed under this section represent long
positions in the shares.

(i)  Interests in underlying shares

Apart from as disclosed under the section headed “Share
Option Scheme” below, none of the Directors or any of
their spouses or children under eighteen years of age
has interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company, or any of its holding
Company, subsidiaries or other associated corporations, as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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Report of the Directors
EEEWE

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Details of the equity-linked agreements entered into during
the year or subsisting at the end of the year are set out
below,

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Share options are granted to the Directors, employees
and other eligible participants specified under the Scheme
approved by shareholders of the Company at the
extraordinary general meeting on 6 June 2003. Details of the
Scheme are as follows:

Purpose To give eligible participants incentives or
rewards for their contribution or potential

contribution to the Group

=

Directors, employees of any member
of the Group or any controlling
shareholder of the Company
(“Controlling Shareholder”) or any
company controlled by a Controlling
Shareholder,

Participants (i

(ii) Holder of any securities issued
by any member of the Group or
any Controlling Shareholder of the
Company or any company controlled
by a Controlling Shareholder,

(iii) (@) any business or joint venture

partner, contractor, agent or

representative of,

(b) any supplier of goods or
services to, or

(©) any customer or distributor of
goods or services of,

Any member of the Group or any
Controlling Shareholder or a
company controlled by a Controlling
Shareholder;

and for the purpose of the Scheme,
shall include any company controlled
by one or more persons belonging to
any of the above classes of persons
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

29,670,600 ordinary shares and
6.22% of the issued share capital

Total number of
ordinary shares
available for issue
and the percentage
of the issued share
capital that it
represents as at the
date of the annual
report

Maximum entitement 1% of the aggregate number of
of each participant ordinary shares in issue in any
12-month period up to the date of

grant

Period within which
the securities must
be taken up under
an option

Within a maximum period of 10
years commencing from the date of
grant of such options

Minimum period for
which an option
must be held before
it can be exercised

Not applicable

HK$1.00 for each lot of share
options granted

Amount payable on
acceptance of the
option

Period within which
payments must be
made

21 days from the date of the offer

Basis of determining
the exercise price

The higher of (i) the closing price of
the shares on the offer date or (i) the
average closing price of the shares
for the 5 trading days immediately
preceding the offer of the option,
provided that the exercise price is
not less than the nominal value of
the share

The Scheme shall remain in force
until 5 June 2013 unless otherwise
terminated in accordance with the
terms of the Scheme

The remaining life of
the Scheme

Report of the Directors
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Report of the Directors
EEEWE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

As at 31 December 2015, the Directors, employees and
other participants had the following interests in options to
subscribe for shares of the Company (market value per
share at 31 December 2015 was HK$0.96) which were
granted for a consideration of HK$1 for each lot of options
under the Scheme. The options are unlisted. Each option
gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary share
of the Company.

No. of options

BRESTE (®)
R2015F 12 A31H EF - BENEMBEATRER

BHRHEAA TR  ZFBREDRIEERER S ASH
BRERE1ETRL  AIRBAXFBND (R20155F 12
AS1AEKRMER0IEET) - BRELE LT - BHE
PR T AN RB—RA QR 2 BB -

by HE
Market
value
per share
Heldat1st  Granted Cancelled Exercised Outstanding Period at date
January during during during at the during which of grant
2015  theyear  theyear  theyear  yearend options are Exercise  of options*
#2015 RER RER RER  RELY  Date exercisable priceper  RERE
£1A1A Rz i E#Ez K72  granted BRETTE share REAHZ
&% BREZE BREZE BREZE BREHE RLAH pa ]| BRTEE SRWE*
HKS HK$
BT BT
Directors
Bz
Executive Directors:
HTEE -
Mr. Wong, John Ying Man 3,800,000 - - 3,300,000 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
EE b 2008F6A30H 29 June 2018
2008%6H30EZ
20186429
3,000,000 - - 3,000,000 20 July 2012 20 July 2012 10 0.690 0.690
20127 A20H 19 July 2022
20124720682
20227 A 190
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) BRAETE ()
No. of options
BRESA
Market
value
per share
Heldatist  Granted Cancelled Exercised Outstanding Period at date
January during during during at the during which of grant
2015  theyear  theyear  theyear  yearend options are Exercise  of options*
#2015 RER RER RER  RELH  Date exercisable priceper  RERE
£1H81H Rz HiE A EEz KTz  granted BRETTHE share REAHZ
&% BREZE BREZE BREE BREHE RLAH pa ]| BRTEE SRWE*
HKS HKS$
B BT
Executive Directors: (Continued)
HITEE (8
Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin 800,000 - - - 800,000 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0910 0.844
BEXBAE 2008F6A30H 29 June 2018
2008%6H30EZ
2018F6 A29H
2,000,000 - - (2,000,000) - 20Juy2012 20 July 2012 1o 0.690 0.690
2012%7A20H 19 July 2022
2012%7H2068%
20227190
Mr. Mok, Kin Hing 2,800,000 - - - 24800,000  30June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
ERELE 200864300 29 June 2018
2008%6H30EZ
20186 A29H
3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000 20 July 2012 20 July 2012 to 0.690 0.690
20127 A20H 19 July 2022
2012%7H2068%
20227 A19H

“T-AEFHK | MREEBRRR 4 25



<

26

Report of the Directors

EEERS

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

No. of options

BRESTE (®)

BRESA
Market
value
per share
Heldat1st ~ Granted Cancelled Exercised Outstanding Period at date
January during during during at the during which of grant
2015  theyear  theyear  theyear  yearend options are Exercise  of options*
#2015 RER RER RER  RELH  Date exercisable priceper  RERE
£151H Rz HiE A EEz KTz  granted BRETTHE share REAHZ
&% BREZE BREZE BREZE BREHE RLAH 2HH BRTEE SRWE*
HKS HK$
BT BT
Non-Executive Directors:
FHTEE -
Mr. Xiong, Zhengfeng 450,000 - - - 450,000 30 June 2008 30June 2008 to 0910 0.844
RIEBREE 2008F6A30H 29 June 2018
2008%6H30EZ
2018567290
300,000 - - - 300,000  60ctober2009 6 October 2009 to 0.630 0.610
2009%1086H 5 October 2019
2000F10A6HZE
201910 A5H
1,200,000 - - - 1,200,000 20 July 2012 20 July 2012 0 0.690 0.690
20127 A20H 19 July 2022
2012%7H2068%
20227190
Ms. Li, Yinghong 1,750,000 - - - 1,750,000 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
FRALT 2008F6A30H 29 June 2018
200846 H30EZ
20186 A29H
1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000  60October 2009 6 October 2009 to 0.630 0.610
2009F10A6H 5 O0ctober 2019
2000510 A6HZE
201910 A 50
1,200,000 - - - 1,200,000 20 July 2012 20 July 2012 to 0.690 0.690
20127 A20H 19 July 2022
2012%7H208%
202267 H198

RAYMOND Industrial Ltd.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) BRAETE ()
No. of options
BRESA
Market
value
per share
Heldatist  Granted Cancelled Exercised Outstanding Period at date
January during during during at the during which of grant
2015  theyear  theyear  theyear  yearend options are Exercise  of options*
#2015 RER RER RER  RELH  Date exercisable priceper  RERE
£1H81H Rz HiE A EEz KTz  granted BRETTHE share REAHZ
&% BREZE BREZE BREE BREHE RLAH pa ]| BRTEE SRWE*
HKS HKS$
B BT
Non-Executive Directors:
FHTEE -
Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit 450,000 - - - 450,000 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
BRAEE 2008F6A30H 29 June 2018
2008%6H30EZ
2018564290
300,000 - - - 300,000  60ctober2009 6 October 2009 to 0.630 0.610
2009%10A6H 5 October 2019
2000F10A6HZE
201910 A 50
600,000 - - - 600,000 20 July 2012 20 July 2012 0 0.690 0.690
20127 A20H 19 July 2022
2012%7H2068%
20227 A 190
Independent Non-Executive Directors:
BUFHTEE -
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung 393,800 - - - 393,800 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0910 0.844
REERE 2008F6A30H 29 June 2018
2008%6H30EZ
2018567290
300,000 - - (300,000) - 60ctober2009 6 October 2009 to 0.630 0.610
2009%10A6H 5 October 2019
2000F10A6HZE
201910 A5H
300,000 - - (300,000) - 20July 2012 20 July 2012 10 0.690 0.690
2012%7A20H 19 July 2022
2012%7H2068%
2022674198

“T-AEFR | MREEAER2F 4 27
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EEERS

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

No. of options

BRESTE (®)

by HE
Market
value
per share
Heldat1st ~ Granted Cancelled Exercised Outstanding Period at date
January during during during at the during which of grant
2015  theyear  theyear  theyear  yearend options are Exercise  of options*
#2015 RER RER RER  RELH  Date exercisable priceper  RERE
£151H Rz HiE A EEz KTz  granted BRETTHE share REAHZ
&% BREZE BREZE BREZE BREHE RLAH 2HH BRTEE SRWE*
HKS HK$
BT BT
Independent Non-Executive Directors: (Continued)
BUHHTEE (&
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da 393,800 - - - 393,800 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0910 0.844
BEEE 2008F6A30H 29 June 2018
2008%6H30EZ
2018567290
300,000 - - - 300,000  60ctober2009 6 October 2009 to 0.630 0.610
2009F10A6H 5 0ctober 2019
2000F10A6HZE
201910 A5H
300,000 - - - 300,000 20 July 2012 20 July 2012 0 0.690 0.690
20127 A20H 19 July 2022
2012%7H2068%
20227 A 190
Alternate Director:
REZ:
Mr. Zhang, Yuankun 930,000 - - (930,000) - 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0910 0.844
RUBEE 2008F6A30H 29 June 2018
2008%6H30EZ
2018567290
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) BB el ()
No. of options
BREHE
Market
value
per share
Held at 1st Granted  Cancelled  Exercised Outstanding Period at date
January during during during atthe during which of grant
2015 the year the year the year year end options are Exercise  of options*
#2015 RER RER RER RELNY  Date exercisable priceper  RERE
F1818 Rdz Fi EEz KTz granted BRETTH share REAHZ
2B BRESE BREHE BREE BREZE RUAH 258 SROEE  SRTE*
HK$ HK$
BT AT
Employees 5,373,000 - (480,0000 (1,858,000 3,085,000 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
E& 20086 A30A 29 June 2018
200856 A30HE
201864290
740,000 - (140,000) (200,000) 400,000 6 October 2009 6 October 2009 to 0.630 0.610
20095 10A6A 5 October 2019
2009F10A6HZ
2019510850
4,128,000 - (855,000) (1,075,000~ 2,198,000 20 July 2012 20 July 2012 to 0.690 0.690
201247 A20H 19 July 2022
201247 A208%
2022€7A19A
Other eligible persons 3,100,000 - (300,000)  (1,300,0000 1,500,000 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0910 0.844
HiteERAL 2008456 A30H 29 June 2018
2008F6A30EZE
2018E6429A
39,408,600 - (1,775,000)  (7,963,000) 29,670,600
Notes: BfE -
The options granted to the Directors are registered under the names & TEEZBEREDARARAEGRBACESZ CERER °

of the Directors who are the beneficial owners.

*

Being the weighted average closing price of the Company’s
ordinary shares immediately before the dates on which the
options were granted or exercised (as the case may be).

Information on the accounting policy for the options granted and
the weighted average value per option is provided in note 2(m)
and note 19 to the financial statements respectively.

Apart from disclosed above, at no time during the year
ended 31 December 2015 was the Company, or any of
its holding company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

* BN A B E BN B B R R ST (2@ ) B A0
Z T E -

ROBERE s @R RSN BRENEFHEZERD
P BA TS TR R P R 2(m) K2 FfHEE19 -

%LXE%&%% REZE2015F 12 A31 B IEFEREM
i - AR EEMZERAF  WBARKRAWB A
TI#EH”%%M%A$ RIS E M EERMD S E
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Report of the Directors
EZERS

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2015, according to the register of
members kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of
the SFO and so far as is known to, or can be ascertained
after reasonable enquiry by the Directors, the following

FTERRREADF 2RO REERD 2 EE

R2015F 12 A31 B » IRARQ AIREEH 15015 336 1518
EGFEZBRREELM MESEFLAESHREATANNE
R TIAL BB (TEEES)NAARIRMG - BEK
19 MEFF A RIBES GBI XV 5 2 & 30 EIEAER

30

persons/entities, other than a Director, had an interest in EVNSIE ol 5
the shares and underlying shares and debentures of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO:
Number of shares
RIEE
% of total
issued
Registered Corporate Family Total shares
Capacity shareholders interests interest B EER EHEH
g BELRR EEER FEEE ROBEHE RAESE
Substantial shareholders
FERR
Ms. Sun, Amelia Kwing Hai Beneficial owner & 150,000 105,875,181 - 106,025,181 22.21%
ezt Interest of spouse (Note 1)
EalEB AR ENER (1)
Broadbridge Enterprises Beneficial owner 27,993,421 - - 27,993,421 5.86%
Limited ERBEAA (Note 2)
(52)
Diamond-Harvest Limited Beneficial owner 77,881,760 - - 77,881,760 16.31%
EXHEEA (Note 3)
(33)
Silver Talent Development Limited  Beneficial owner 53,080,800 - - 53,080,800 11.12%
BUBEBERAA ERBEEA
Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang Interest of a controlled - 40,205,688 - 40,205,688 8.42%
BRTET corporation (Note 4)
REEEEE R (54)
Mrs. Wong Cheng, Interest of a controlled - 40,205,688 - 40,205,688 8.42%
Gertrude Kwok Cheung corporation (Note 4)
BEHEBERT W EE R (54)
Ho Kit Man Inc. Beneficial owner 40,119,688 - - 40,119,688 8.40%
ERBEBA
Webb, David Michael Beneficial owner & Interest 7,581,000 16,355,000 - 23,936,000 5.01%
of a controlled corporation (Note 5)
BB ARZEG ZEER (5)

RAYMOND Industrial Ltd.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

Notes:

(1) These shares were held through Broadbridge Enterprises
Limited and Diamond-Harvest Limited, companies
beneficially controlled by Ms. Sun, Amelia Kwing Hai and
her spouse, Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae.

) These shares were held through Broadbridge Enterprises
Limited, a company controlled by Ms. Sun, Amelia Kwing
Hai and Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae.

Q) These shares were held through Diamond-Harvest Limited,
a company controlled by Ms. Sun, Amelia Kwing Hai and
Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae.

(4) These shares were held through Ho Kit Man Inc. and
Sunnydale Enterprises Holdings Ltd., companies controlled
by Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang and his spouse, Mrs. Wong
Cheng, Gertude Kwok Cheung.

5) These shares were held through Preferable Situation Assets
Limited, a company controlled by Mr. Webb, David Michael.

All the interests disclosed under this section represent long
positions in the shares of the Company.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available and within
the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this annual
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public
float under the Listing Rules.

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of
the directors of the Company is currently in force and was
in force throughout this year. The Company has purchased
suitable insurances for the Directors with respect to their
possible legal proceedings.

Report of the Directors
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Report of the Directors
EZERS

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACTS

Except for the transactions disclosed in note 23(b) to
the financial statements, no transaction, arrangement or
contract of significance subsisted during or at the end of
the year in which the Director or an entity connected with
the Director is or was materially interested, either directly or
indirectly.

FIVEYEAR SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 120
of this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles of Association and there was no restriction against
such rights under the laws of Hong Kong, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis
to its existing shareholders.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No substantial contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Group were entered into or existed during
the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Significant related party transaction entered into by the
Group on 9 May 2014, which constitutes connected
transaction under the Listing Rules, is disclosed in note 23(b)
to the financial statements. Details of which please refer to
the announcement of the Company dated 12 May 2014.

Significant related party transactions entered into by the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2015, which
do not constitute connected transactions under the Listing
Rules are disclosed in note 23(a) to the financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, there is no related party
transaction set out in note 23 to the financial statements fall
into the category of connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions under the Listing Rules. The
Company has complied with the requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules with respect to the
connected transaction.

| Annual Report 2015

BEE2XE RIS EERE

BRI IRR ML 2300) 4 » EFERAAFEEMSER » 15
BEFEREZESEMENER DA K ERKNHEE
BEARGNEERS - RHHAKIDARERE -

SEHBREE

NEBBESEGRFE 2 ZEREEABRRMESHNAFIR
F120H o

BREBLBEERE

MEERP I EE B G MBREPITTER
EARR BB PIAIRA R REER R Z SRR -

EEEHK

AEERFALEREBRG N EMERER C EENTT
B TR S F A EMEREH

BREXS
AEBR2014F5 0BT EEMERSHUHEK L™
KAET ZAEXSHNIEREM T 230) - F1BFH2 A
AABIHHEA2014F5 A12 B2 A% -

AREBREIE2015F12A31BIEZFERETZEER
BRGTEBREMBRAUET ZBEX ZEHNR Y B REM T
23(a) °

B B IR ER SN - 10 L 1 0 51 A B 7 $R R P o 23 O (AT A
BORSEFEBBR I X HBN EMRABEBTATHREN
MERZFHIFEMERS - ARAIMEXIZHENALTH
AIFVAATHRERE -



RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme
which covers all of the Group’s employees. Particulars of
these retirement schemes are set out in note 17 to the
financial statements.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and considers all the Independent Non-Executive Directors
to be independent.

AUDITORS

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited will retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-
appointment of Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited as auditors
of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. There has been no change in the auditors
of the Company in the preceding three years.

By order of the Board

Wong, Wilson Kin Lae
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 March 2016
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERBS

The Company puts great emphasis on corporate
governance by reviewing and strengthening corporate
governance measures from time to time. The board of the
Company believes that shareholders can derive maximum
benefits from good corporate governance.

Throughout the year, the Company was in compliance with
the Code of Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG
Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, with
an exception of deviations from code provision A.4.1 of the
CG Code in respect of the service term of independent non-
executive directors.

Under code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, non-executive
directors (including independent non-executive Directors)
should be appointed for a specific term and subject to
retirement by rotation.

None of the existing non-executive Directors (including
the independent non-executive Directors) is appointed
for a specific term. This constitutes a deviation from code
provision A.4.1 of the CG Code. However, all non-executive
Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors)
are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
annual general meeting of the Company in accordance with
the provisions of the Company’s Articles of Association.
Besides, the Company has also received the annual
confirmation of independence from each independent non-
executive director and the Board believes that independent
non-executive Directors continue to be independent. As
such, the Company considers that sufficient measures have
been taken to ensure that the standard of the Company’s
corporate governance practices is not lower than those
required in the CG Code.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code
of conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors
and established written guidelines no less exacting than the
Model Code for senior management and specified persons
who are likely to possess inside information in relation to the
Group.

Having made specific enquiry, all the directors confirmed that
they had complied with the required standards as set out in
the Model Code for the year ended 31 December 2015.

RAYMOND Industrial Ltd. | Annual Report 2015

ARAFHEREBRA/ER - AR mE MR ERER
M  EEQHERRARRFNEEE AT ERRAK
B Flas o

REIR - FREARESFITES 2 IRBERIEEET LR
A4 Bz EEREAE R TR (TERFR ) A4.18R
RIFMTEENZEFRZGIIN ARA—EETER
STRIZARTE

REBEERTAALABGZRE - FRTES (BIEBILF
WITES) EREFEREFBLARESK

ARRZBREFRRTESR (BEBIUIFNTES) OTRE
EREFH - WHERETERTALARERZHE - A
- RIEARBZ AREMER - FIEFATES (B
VIFATER) R ERERRBFASHESIK © LI
AABERBNBBIFNTERTZFEBUER RS
BIUFATEFTHEBERTEL - Bt ARARR/ER
MADRERAERARR 2 EXEAKFETNERERT
Az & o

ERETERRS
ARRERMEEFARAEERTESRHNERTT
Bl WRBHTEREEFANEEES ERESRER
ABRAIGEAEENE Y BMEEAL -

KANREHE 28BS
31 HIFE—FEFEE

#
&
2

AEENEHZE2015F12 A
1) o

-



GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Company’s corporate governance structure includes
the Board and three committees under the Board, namely
audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee. The Board stipulates the terms of reference for
all committees in writing and specifies clearly the power and
responsibilities of the committees.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board comprises four executive Directors, three non-
executive Directors, and four independent non-executive
Directors. Each of the non-executive Directors (including
the independent non-executive Directors) is appointed for
an unspecified term. Please refer to page 19 of this annual
report for composition of the Board.

All independent non-executive Directors have complied with
the requirements of the Listing Rules and have submitted to
the Company annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board has assessed
their independence and confirms that all independent non-
executive Directors are independent parties as defined in the
Listing Rules. Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung was appointed
on 16 March 1988, Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da was appointed
on 12 December 1994, Mr. Ng Yiu Ming was appointed on
2 July 2004 and Mr. Lo, Wilson Kwong Shun was appointed
on 1 January 2013. The appointment of Directors is not fixed
for a specified term, but they are subject to the retirement
and re-election requirements at every annual general
meeting pursuant to the Articles of Association.

The family relationship among the Directors is summarized
as follows:

Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae is the father of Mr. Wong,
Raymond Man Hin and uncle of Mr. Wong, John Ying Man
and Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit.

Mr. Wong, John Ying Man and Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit are
brothers and they are cousins of Mr. Wong, Raymond Man
Hin.

The Directors have conducted a review of the effectiveness
of the system of internal control of the Company and its
subsidiaries.

Corporate Governance Report
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The Board convenes at least four regular meetings each EFGFFHLEM4ATHEH  NTEEEREERIEFRE
year, and will convene further meetings when necessary. &% ° EARTEHAESS RN EF2XHIREBELTHR
When a regular Board meeting is convened, the Board BIRFEHRTFRMNEERERAINEAXTESEN  FES8
documents will be sent to the Directors for review before HEEBFEEER - WERITEBEMNEE - EF21R 2015
the meeting pursuant to the Listing Rules and the CG Code =~ FHAR6REHE °

so that the Directors can keep abreast of the information

to perform their duties and responsibilities. The Board

convened 6 meetings in 2015.

The attendance of directors is as follows: EFHEBRIOT :
Attendance Attendance
No. of Board No. of general
meetings attended/ meetings attended/
No. of Board No. of general
meetings held during meetings held during
term of service Attendance term of service Attendance
Director Name HEESS2Z Y/ Rate HERRASRE,/ Rate
ESER FHNESSERRY HEE EHRRRAEREY HEE
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae ~ EEFI%4E (£/E)

(Chairman) 6/6 100% 11 100%
Mr. Wong, John Ying Man HRGSE 5/6 83% 0/1 0%
Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin & X4 5/6 83% il 100%
Mr. Mok, Kin Hing Rlgmsis 5/6 83% 11 100%
Non-Executive Directors HHNTEE
Ms Li, Yinghong SR+ 3/6 50% 0/1 0%
Mr. Xiong Zhengfeng BRI LA 416 67% il 100%
Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit HRERE 6/6 100% il 100%

Independent Non-Executive B/ ZF#77EF

Directors
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung 2B 4 6/6 100% il 100%
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da BLERAE 5/6 83% 1 100%
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming mEREE 6/6 100% 11 100%
Mr. Lo, Wilson Kwong Shun ~ #EE L4 5/6 83% 1 100%
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The remuneration of Directors is determined with reference
to their functions and responsibilities in the Company,
the performance of the Company and the current
market conditions. No Director is allowed to participate
in determining his own remuneration. The remuneration
received by Directors from the Company during the
year is set out in Note 7 of the financial statement. The
Board has set up an independent professional consulting
procedure and upon reasonable request, Directors are able
to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expenses.

Apart from regular Board meetings, the chairman also held
meeting with independent non-executive Directors without
presence of executive Directors during the year.

All the Directors have participated in continuous professional
development, e.g. updated Listing Rules training, to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills provided by
the Group. The Company maintained the training records
received by each of the Directors in FY2015

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee comprises four independent non-
executive Directors with extensive experience in accounting
or legal matters. The audit committee was established with
specific written terms of reference, mainly responsible for
reviewing the financial statements and annual and interim
reports and accounts of the Company, submitting relevant
reports and recommendations to the Board, reviewing
the Company’s financial controls, internal control and risk
management systems and making recommendations on
the appointment and remuneration of the auditors of the
Company and any matters related to the termination of
appointment. Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung is chairman of
the audit committee and is responsible for reporting the
results and recommendations of the audit committee to the
Board after each meeting.
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In 2015, the audit committee convened 3 meetings.
Members of the audit committee and their attendance are as
follows:

R2016%F  EREBE@HAMIRERE
RHEFBERIT -

- BZEBEKE

Attendance

No. of meetings
attended/

No. of meetings

held during the year Attendance
Member Name HEHESBRIE Rate
REEHE FHAERXE HE=E
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung RRUME S (/)

(Chairman) 3/3 100%
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da BlERE 3/3 100%
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming HIBER L& 3/3 100%
Mr. Lo, Wilson Kwong Shun BEETE 3/3 100%

Tasks undertaken by the audit committee during the year
included reviewing the 2014 audited financial statements
and the annual results announcement, reviewing the interim
report for the six months ended 30 June 2015 and the
interim results announcement, considering the accounting
standards adopted, reviewing the explanatory letter about
audit submitted by the auditors to the management and
the response of the management, the basis of opinion and
qualified opinion (if any) made by the auditors in their report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate risk
management and internal control system on an ongoing basis
to safeguard the interests of the Company’s shareholders
and the Group’s assets and with the support of the Audit
Committee, for reviewing the effectiveness of such system on
an annual basis. In addition, there is regular dialogue with the
Group’s internal and external auditors so that both are aware
of the significant factors which may affect their respective
scope of work.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee comprises four independent
non-executive Directors and two executive Directors. The
remuneration committee was established with specific
written terms of reference, principally responsible for
reviewing and approving remuneration plans for directors
and senior management, determining the remuneration
package of executive directors and senior management,
including benefits, pension interests and the payment of
compensation. Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung is chairman
of the remuneration committee and is responsible for
reporting the meeting results and recommendations of the
remuneration committee to the Board after each meeting.

In 2015, the remuneration committee convened 1 meeting.
Members of the remuneration committee and their
attendance are as follows:
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FNZBEEM4BB LN TESTM2RAMITERTMAX -
MEEQEXIERBETIEASEMMUEEZTLRSR
EERABNFMIR BEATESTLSMEEENTMH
78 BREANE  BRRESEERBESN - REAUEELER
FMEEENEF  AEANBASRRAEFTSREHM
ZEENERERIEBER -

R2016%F  FMEZES@BET1IREH - FHEEEKE
R FEBERIT -

Attendance
No. of meetings attended/
No. of meetings

held during the year Attendance
Member Name HEHESE RS Rate
REEHE FHAERXE HE=R
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung RRHES A (/)

(Chairman) 11 100%
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da BlERE 1/1 100%
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming HBRA ST 1/1 100%
Mr. Lo, Wilson Kwong Shun BEETE 1/1 100%
Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin EXAEAE 1/1 100%
Mr. Wong, John Ying Man EREHSTE 1/1 100%

Tasks undertaken by the remuneration committee
during the year included reviewing the remuneration
structure, remuneration policy and bonus system of the
Group, assessing performance of Executive Directors,
considering the salary adjustment for the year and making
recommendations to the Board. The remuneration
committee also ensures that no Director or senior
management member determines his own remuneration.
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The remuneration policy of the Group is to determine the
remuneration of executive Directors and senior management
based on their responsibilities, qualifications and working
performance. No Director or any of his associates is
involved in deciding his own remuneration. The Company
has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to the
Directors, employees and other eligible participants. Details
of the share option scheme are set out in note 19 to the
financial statement.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee comprise four independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming (Chairman),
Mr. Leung. Michael Kai Hung, Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da and
Mr. Lo, Wilson Kwong Shun. The nomination committee is
to deal with the appointment, re-election and retirement of
Directors.

In 2015, the nomination committee convened 1 meetings.
Members of the nomination committee and their attendance
are as follows:

AEENFIHHREANRTEZTLSNEEABRETH

BE BFEMIRREMEBETENE - RAEFH
BAT2FREHEASOME - ADRIRMIEAETEIA
HEEE BEMHEMAERAL BRETEZHBE
RIS REMIFE19 ©

REZEE

?m%?éi/\ﬁﬂ%%_dFﬂﬂﬁ% higfRELE (XF) ~ R
RRHESEE B EAENBERELRLEN - REZESR
BEENEE  SRERENSEE -

R2016%F REZBEEBRTIRNEH - REZBEEKE
KHEEERIMT

Attendance
No. of meetings attended/
No. of meetings

held during the year Attendance
Member Name HEHESERE Rate
REER FHAER R HE=E
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming (Chairman) HIBRASLE (/) 1/1 100%
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung RIS A& 1/1 100%
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da CiESAE 1/1 100%
Mr. Lo, Wilson Kwong Shun BEERE 1/1 100%
ROLES OF THE BOARD AND MANAGEMENT ESEREEENAR
The Board is principally responsible for establishing the ZEFEFE E S BEUAEBEMERER - BV EBEBRREBR
development direction of the Group, formulating targets and ?*)E;Hri'] HWEABZEREE  EEafRBEREENRE
business development plans, approving major agreements R/ A EE mﬁ;b@mﬂﬂx?f S8 - EIRE A SRR

and matters, and monitoring the performances of senior
management. It is also responsible for corporate governance
with a view to enhance shareholders’ value. Led by the
three general managers, the management is responsible
for implementing the strategies and plans developed by the
Board.
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The Company has developed a schedule of matters
reserved to the Board for decisions and has separately
identified those functions reserved to the Board. The Board
will review those arrangements on a regular basis to ensure
that the arrangements meet the needs of the Company.

ROLES AND DUTIES OF CHAIRMAN AND
GENERAL MANAGER

The chairman and the general manager (equivalent to
chief executive officer) have different roles. The chairman is
responsible for the operation of the Board and the general
managers are responsible for managing the operations
of the Group. Their functions have been clearly divided to
ensure a balanced distribution of power and no authority will
concentrate on a single individual.

Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae, the chairman of the Board, is
principally responsible for leading the Board and ensures
the Board to act in the best interests of the Company. The
chairman ensures that the Board to operate effectively
and perform its proper duties and discuss all important
and proper matters in a timely manner. The chairman is
responsible for convening Board meetings, consulting,
determining and approving the agenda of each Board
meeting, and ensuring that Directors are provided sufficient
information on current matters in a timely manner. The
chairman oversees the structure, number of members and
composition of the Board and makes recommendations
to the Board and the relevant committees on any intended
changes. The chairman is also responsible for ensuring
that the Company formulates good corporate governance
practice and procedure.

Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin, the deputy executive
chairman, an executive Director and a general manager,
is principally responsible for the daily operation and
management of the Group’s overall operations and
implementing the Board’s operating strategy and policy
and delegating tasks to all departments for implementation
so as to realize the Board’s objectives and decisions. In
addition, he is also responsible for the Group’s financial
reporting, internal control, material procurement and control,
logistics, customs, taxes and legal matters and compliance,
coordinating close cooperation among all departments,
uniting efforts of staff and encouraging the initiative of staff
so as to ensure smooth and effective operation of the
Company’s operations and systems.
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Mr. Wong, John Ying Man, an executive Director and a
general manager, is principally responsible for the daily
operation and management of the Group’s overall operations
and implementing the Board’s operating strategy and policy
and delegating tasks to all departments for implementation
so as to realize the Board’s objectives and decisions. In
addition, he is also responsible for research & development,
production, quality assurance and new product innovations,
coordinating close cooperation among all departments,
uniting efforts of staff and encouraging the initiative of staff
so as to ensure smooth and effective operation of the
Company’s operations and systems.

Mr. Mok, Kin Hing, an executive Director and a general
manager, is principally responsible for the daily operation
and management of the Group’s overall operations and
implementing the Board’s operating strategy and policy and
delegating tasks to all departments for implementation so as
to realize the Board’s objectives and decisions. In addition,
he is also responsible for supervising all personnel issues
at our Nansha production facilities, all capital equipments
installation and disposal, and overseeing all employee
champions programs to optimize costs and make sure our
facilities are in full compliance with local, international and
environment laws and standards.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Article 95 of the Articles of Association, the
Board is entitled to appoint any person as Director from
time to time or at any time to fill a casual vacancy or add a
new member to the Board. For nomination, the nominee’s
qualifications, capabilities and potential to make contribution
to the Company shall be taken into consideration by the
nomination committee.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility in preparing
the financial statements of the Group.

The finance department of the Company is managed by
a qualified staff and supervised by executive Director and
general manager, Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin, who is
a U.S. certified public accountant. With the assistance
of the finance department, the Board will ensure that
the preparation of the financial statements of the Group
complies with relevant regulations and applicable accounting
standards.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration in respect of audit and non-audit services
(including review of interim financial information and tax
services) for the year ended 31 December 2015 provided
by Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited and its affiliate were
approximately HK$692,000, and HK$269,000 respectively.

The statement of reporting responsibility issued by Baker
Tilly Hong Kong Limited, the auditor of the Company, in
respect of the financial statements of the Group is set out in
the independent auditor’s report on pages 46 to 47.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has maintained communication with its
shareholders through the annual general meeting or other
general meetings and encourages them to participate in
general meetings. Registered shareholders of the Company
receive notices of general meetings by post. The notice
of general meeting contains the agenda, the proposed
resolutions and the voting form. All shareholders of the
Company are entitled to attend the annual general meeting
and special general meetings of the Company. Shareholders
who are unable to attend the general meeting can fill in the
proxy form attached with the notice of general meeting and
return the same to the share registrar and transfer office of
the Company so as to appoint their representatives or the
chairman of the meeting as their proxies.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT

Right to convene an extraordinary general
meeting

Pursuant to Article 68 of the Articles of Association, an
extraordinary general meeting shall be convened by the
Directors on requisition as provided by the Companies
Ordinance or by the requisitionist. The Directors are required
to call a general meeting if the Company has received
requests from shareholders of the Company representing
at least 5% of the total voting rights of all the shareholders
having a right to vote at general meetings.
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Right to put enquiries to the Board

Shareholders have the right to put enquiries to the Board. All
enquiries can be in writing and sent for the attention of the
Board, in one of the following ways:

1. By Post Raymond Industrial Limited
Rooms 1801-1813, 18th floor,
Grandtech Centre,

8 On Ping Street,

Shatin, New Territories

2. By facsimile  (852) 2341 8669

3. By email ril@rilhk.com

Procedures to put forward proposals at general
meetings

Shareholders who would like to put forward proposals at a
general meeting shall follow the procedures below.

Shareholders of the Company representing at least 2.5%
of the total voting rights of all the shareholders who have a
relevant right to vote or at least 50 shareholders who have a
relevant right to vote may request the Company to:

i) give notice of a resolution that may properly be
moved and is intended to be moved at the annual
general meeting of the Company; or

ii) circulate a statement of not more than 1,000 words
with respect to a matter mentioned in a proposed
resolution to be dealt with at a general meeting or
other business to be dealt with at the meeting;

to each shareholder of the Company entitled to receive
notice of the meeting.

A request to give notice of a resolution must be received by
the Company not later than (i) 6 weeks before the annual
general meeting to which the request relates; or (i) if later,
the time at which notice is given of that meeting. A request
to circulate shareholders’ statement must be received by
the Company at least 7 days before the meeting to which it
relates. Such request may be sent to the Company in hard
copy form or in electronic form.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Lo, Wai Keung Eric (“Mr. Lo”) has been appointed as
the company secretary of the Company since 24 January
2014. Mr. Lo is responsible for ensuring that the Board
is fully appraised of the relevant corporate governance
developments relating to the Group and facilitating the
professional development of the directors.

Mr. Lo has received no less than 15 hours relevant
professional training during FY 2015.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BIYREMESE

=

BAKER TILLY
HONG KONG K7 it

Independent auditor’s report to the members of
Raymond Industrial Limited

MNREXERAF

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Raymond Industrial Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 48 to
119, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2015, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2015, and of the Group’s financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 23 March 2016

Tong Wai Hang
Practising certificate number PO6231

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

(For the year ended 31 December 2015)

GAEBRBER

(Bt Z 20154 12 4 31 HiFF/Z)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB REN)
2015 2014
Note HK$ HK$
FfaE ik ks
Revenue 'ON 3 988,449,114 | 1,034,874,526
Cost of sales fHE KA (886,596,543) (911,917,905)
Gross profit EF 101,852,571 122,956,621
Other revenue E AU A 4 2,370,996 1,948,507
Other net (loss)/income Hh% (E18), s 4 (144,321) 941,159
Net foreign exchange gain: N H RS
reclassified from equity {i)EsNGIE=E
upon deregistration of i EMN A
a subsidiary 17,884,012 -
Selling expenses HEER (14,378,536) (14,908,034)
General and administrative —ME RITIE R
expenses (62,839,383) (66,768,629)
Profit before taxation RREE AR F 5 44,745,339 44,169,624
Income tax Frig i 6 (8,416,870) (15,883,233)
Profit for the year and RN TR RIEL
attributable to equity R B F
shareholders
of the Company 36,328,469 28,286,391
Earnings per share BRER 9
Basic, HK cents AR B 7.65 6.04
Diluted, HK cents #E - AL 7.53 5.96

Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
Company attributable to the profit for the year are set out in

note 20(b).

The notes on pages 55 to 119 form part of the consolidated ~ #H N E 55 B F

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

(For the year ended 31 December 2015)

GEeREkAMEERER

(B F2015F 12 31 A1 FE)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABEREN)
2015 2014
Note HK$ HK$
FfaE it Vokio
Profit for the year FERN 36,328,469 28,286,391
Other comprehensive loss for FEHMEEES :
the year:
ltem that may be reclassified BN BB
subsequently to profit or loss: HIEE
— Exchange differences on - MBI INETS R B IS TR
translation of financial EEMENZRE -
statements of foreign EmIAZFE
operations, net of nil tax (18,561,940) (1,405,735)
— Exchange reserve reclassified - AMB ARG
to profit or loss upon REBREENREES
deregistration of a subsidiary, BlE - ERIEZFE
net of nil tax (17,884,012) -
(36,445,952) (1,405,735)
Total comprehensive (loss)/ TATBRRELMFEZ
income for the year and 2H (F58R) WEEE8E
attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company (117,483) 26,880,656

The notes on pages 55 to 119 form part of the consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

(At 31 December 2015)
G MBEMRRE
(20154 12 A 31 A#ZE)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AW REN)

2015 2014
Note HK$ HKS
P 5T B ks
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W% - HE K& 11 165,693,369 196,514,429
Interests in leasehold land held for BIECEHERES A
own use under operating leases 2 HiiER 11 8,141,666 9,075,984
Deferred tax assets BEERIBEE 12(b) 8,345,504 7,476,336
182,180,539 213,066,749
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 13 112,335,440 146,072,052
Trade and other receivables B 5 NEMEIWERIA 14 208,005,264 231,496,240
Tax recoverable AR EIFIA 12(a) 1,549,617 253
Cash and cash equivalents ReE KA EEEE 15 244,472,180 213,008,820
566,362,501 590,577,365
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables 2 5 RHEMEIRIE 16 173,683,542 199,430,808
Dividends payable FERTRR B, 203,787 155,167
Tax payable JERIFLIR 12(a) 10,095,169 7,635,527
183,982,498 207,221,502
Net current assets REEEFE 382,380,003 383,355,863
Total assets less current liabilites ~ #2&E R TEBE 564,560,542 596,422,612
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Deferred tax liabilities BEEHIBEE 12(b) 167,906 174,142
NET ASSETS EEFE 564,392,636 596,248,470
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARRHE
Share capital & A 20(b) 445,820,688 438,527,402
Other reserves H bR 118,571,948 157,721,068
TOTAL EQUITY kR 564,392,636 596,248,470

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors 722016 F 3 A 23 BEEE G A MK ETIE -
on 23 March 2016.

Wilson Wong Kin Lae Raymond Wong Man Hin

= A BEXE

Director Director

o EZE

The notes on pages 55 to 119 form part of the consolidated ~ ERFE S5 BEEZFE 119 B 2 M AAEK I FHEE VB @K 2
financial statements. —&n
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
(For the year ended 31 December 2015)
REeREREHR <
(BZE 20164 12 A 31 HIFFE)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(B REN)
PRC
Share Share Exchange Capital Retained statutory Total
capital premium reserve reserve earnings reserve equity
i RAERE ERGfE ERGE RERR  PEEERG fitER
Note HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
i3 A A A e e e e
At1 January 2014 R20145E1 A1 BER 233,389,630 202,907,615 86,779,024 4,887,724 33,051,438 34,509,697 595,525,128
Changes in equity for 2014: 2014 ZEXEF
Proft for the year TERRT - - - - 28,286,391 - 28,286,391
Exchange differences on BERIEHH
franslation of financial HBREEEN
statements of foreign EiZE
operations - - (1,405,735) - - - (1,405,735)
Total comprehensive income TERENGEE - - (1,405,735) - 28,086,391 - 26,880,656
Appropriation to PRC HEEERBEN
statutory reserve - - - - (2,378,876) 2,378,876 -
Dividends approved in BERS
respect of
-~ current year - KE 200)0) - - - - (9,378,785) - (9,378.785)
- previous ear - 4% 200 - - - - [8740571) - [87405T1)
Shares issued under share ER014£3A3H
option scheme prior to B ERE
3March 2014 Rine &
ElRiERD
- 1085 proceeds - Eha 20(a)li 102,500 34,150 - - - - 136,650
- transfer from capital esene. — RALERER - 20,648 - (20,648) - - -
Transfer upon adoption of 201423 53R
new Hong Kong Companies ~ #T&ER IR
Ordinance (Chapter 622) ($628)8%
on 3March 2014 N0 22002413 (02962413 - - - - -
Shares issued under share REER 20145
option scheme on or after 3A3AEE Y
3 March 2014 BRERD
- 1085 proceeds - Eha 20(a)li 1825,392 - - - - - 1825,392
- transfer fom capital esenve. — MALRERER 247,467 - - (247 467) - - -
WGI3TTT2 RNTHIS (140573 (88115 R2MS) 2378876 723,342
At 31 December 2014 R2014E12 31 AR 438,527,402 - 86,373,289 4,619,609 30,839,597 36,388,573 596,248,470
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

(For the year ended 31 December 2015)

FEEREHR
(BtZ 2015 12 431 HIFF/E)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(BB AREN)
PRC
Share  Exchange Capital Retained statutory Total
capital reserve reserve earnings reserve equity
RA& EHfE EN RREN DEEERE AR
Note HKS HKS HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HK$
Mgk bt et ot it ot ot
At 1 January 2015 R201551 B 1 AEe 438,527,402 85,373,280 4,619,609 30,839,597 36,888,573 596,248,470
Changes in equity for 2015: 20155 2 BEEH
Profit for the year TEEEA - - - 36,328,469 - 36,328,469
Exchange differences on BESNEBNIBRRES
translation of financial MELZEE
statements of foreign operations - (18,561,940) - - - (18,561,940)
Exchange reserve reclassffied FANBAREERS
to profit or loss upon RFEETREZRRE
deregistration of a subsiolary, BRIBFE
net of nil tax - (17,884,012) - - - (17,884,012)
Total comprehensive loss FEREEEES - (36,445,952 - 36,328,469 - (117,483)
Appropriation to PRC HELATE R
statutory reserve - - - (834,800) 834,800 -
Release of PRC statutory HBAREES
reserve upon deregistration ETREEY
of a subsidiary - - - 2913791  (2,913,791) -
Dividends approved in respect of SRR &
— current year - ¥ 20(0)() - - - (9,546,845 - (9,546,845
- previous year -fiF 20(b)(i) - - - (28,555,336) - (28,555,336)
Shares issued under share BT BERERY
option scheme
— gross proceeds - Ela 20(a)i) 6,363,830 - - - - 6,363,830
~ transfer from capital reserve - BERGEEY 929,456 - (929,456) = = =
Cancellation of share options BB - - (201,986) 201,986 - -
7,293,286  (36,445952)  (1,131,442) 507,265  (2,078,991) (31,855,834)
At 31 December 2015 R2015% 12 F 31 R4 445,820,688 48,927,337 3,488,167 31,346,862 34,809,582 564,392,636

The notes on pages 55 to 119 form part of the consolidated

financial statements.

RAYMOND Industrial Ltd.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
(For the year ended 31 December 2015)

SREReRER 4

(BFE2015F 12 431 AIFFE)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AR REN)
2015 2014
Note HK$ HK$
(s it Vokio
Operating activities RETEE
Profit before taxation BT AR A 44,745,339 44,169,624
Adjustments for: P
— Amortisation of interests in — BHERBKEEE
leasehold land held for own BIEERz LR
use under operating leases 5(b) 399,635 424,652
— Depreciation - e 5(b) 34,754,459 36,620,772
— Foreign exchange (gain)/loss, net — [BRF (S B8 (18,856,945) 140,758
— Interest income — FEUA 4 (2,370,996) (1,948,507)
— Net loss/(gain) on disposal of — HEYE  BEEEEZ
property, plant and equipment SRR (MEs) 4 3,600,324 (229,214)
— Reversal of overprovision of — AMBARGAXELDERS
unused staff welfare fund upon BEZRBEIEF
deregistration of a subsidiary 4 (1,319,946) -
— Write-down/(reversal of — $REE ([ REE)
write-down) of inventories, net FEFE 4,166,694 (514,572)
Operating profit before changes EEESRBAIKE SRR
in working capital 65,118,564 78,663,513
Decrease/(increase) in inventories w, (I FE 29,569,918 (744,631)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and wmL (M E SR
other receivables E e Y IR 18 23,490,976 (17,790,038)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and CRd) EINE 5K
other payables HAbEARIA (24,427,320) 3,733,148
Cash generated from operations REEE4ECHE 93,752,138 63,861,992
Tax paid: RIEZ T -
- Hong Kong Profits Tax paid, net — FEBNEHRIZE (6,524,683) (345,308)
- PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid — PREPEMSH ST (2,093,017) (12,522,313)
Net cash generated from RETHEECHSFE
operating activities 85,134,438 50,994,371
Investing activities REEE
Payment for the purchase of XTHBEME - BELRE
property, plant and equipment (18,788,932) (40,508,627)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE  BELRE
plant and equipment FriS k18 325,782 3,738,647
Interest received FBUA 2,370,996 1,948,507
Net cash used in investing BRETHIHZREFE
activities (16,092,154)|  (34,821,473)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

(For the year ended 31 December 2015)

GBEHRERER

(BtZ 2015 12 431 HIFF/E)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AW REN)

2015 2014
Note HK$ HK$
B ik Nokess
Financing activities REEE
Proceeds from shares issued BATHR R (D 2 Wax
under share option scheme 20(a)(ii) 6,363,830 1,962,042
Dividends paid SRR (38,053,561) (28,109,172)
Net cash used in financing METETHZ
activities REFEE (31,689,731) (26,147,130)
Increase/(decrease) in cash and #imn/ (R BER
cash equivalents Re&ZEEER 37,352,553 (9,974,232)
Cash and cash equivalents R1A1HZRER
at 1 January Re%EER 213,008,820 223,736,803
Effect of foreign exchange HNEERSE 2 E
rate changes (5,889,193) (753,751)
Cash and cash equivalents M12A31HZ
at 31 December ReRBEELEHEER 15 244,472,180 213,008,820
The notes on pages 55 to 119 form part of the consolidated ~ MR ES5 BEEE 119 B v MFE AAEK I T4 a8 M KRz 2 —
financial statements. Efp -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

i B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

I COMPANY INFORMATION

Raymond Industrial Limited (the “Company”) is a company
incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and has its
registered office and principal place of business at Rooms
1801 — 1813, 18th Floor, Grandtech Centre, 8 On Ping
Street, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong.

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

() Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements for year ended 31
December 2015 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”).

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“"HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong. These financial statements also comply with the
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
These financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

(BB REMN)
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121812 1801-1813F »
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HZE2015F 12 A1 AL FEZEFRAUEHRERBIEART]
LEMBAR (5 [ AER]) 28RE -
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rEg([HEY quEﬂi’“'G%J)ﬁﬁﬁ‘EZFﬁﬁiﬁﬁHZﬂE‘Jﬁ}%ﬁﬁ%
LR BAGHER (BB ER]) REE B8
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(LB BEMN)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(@)

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for
the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Note 2(c) provides information on any changes in
accounting policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that are relevant to the Group for
the current and prior accounting periods reflected in these
consolidated financial statements.

Statement of compliance (Continued)

A summary of significant accounting policies adopted by the
Group is set out below.

(b)

Basis of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements is the historical cost basis.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) 4

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements (Continued)

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in note 27.

(c)  Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued the following amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting
period of the Group:

° Amendments to HKAS 19, Employee benefits:
Defined benefit plans: Employee contributions

° Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 — 2012 Cycle
° Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011 — 2013 Cycle

Except as described below, the above amendments do not
have significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2010 - 2012 Cycle and
2011 - 2013 Cycle

These two cycles of annual improvements contain
amendments to nine standards with consequential
amendments to other standards. Among them, HKAS 24,
Related party disclosures has been amended to expand
the definition of a “related party” to include a management
entity that provides key management personnel services
to the reporting entity, and to require the disclosure of
the amounts incurred for obtaining the key management
personnel services provided by the management entity.
These amendments do not have an impact on the Group’s
related party disclosures as the Group does not obtain key
management personnel services from management entities.

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period (see note 28).

i B B &t
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58 RAYMOND Industrial Ltd.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(LB BEMN)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances and transactions and any unrealised profits
arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 2(g)(ii).

(e) Property, plant and equipment

ltems of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
note 2(g)(ii)).

The cost of construction in progress includes the cost of
machinery, materials, construction expenditures and other
costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to a working
condition for its intended use.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or
loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, over their estimated useful lives at the following
annual rates:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

i B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Buildings held for own use which are
situated on leasehold land, where the
fair value of the building could be
measured separately from the fair value
of the leasehold land at the inception of
the lease (see note 2(f)(i))

Plant and machinery

Furniture, fixtures and equipment

Motor vehicles

4.0% - 4.5% straight line

9.0% - 18.0% straight line

9.0% - 33.3% straight line

25.0% reducing balance
and 18.0% straight line

Construction in progress is not depreciated until it is
completed and ready for its intended use.

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any,
are reviewed annually.

() Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made
based on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement
and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal
form of a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as being held under finance
leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified
as operating leases, except where the land held for own
use under an operating lease, the fair value of which cannot
be measured separately from the fair value of a building
situated thereon, is accounted for as being held under a
finance lease, unless the building is also clearly held under
an operating lease. For these purposes, the inception of the
lease is the time that the lease was first entered into by the
Group, or taken over from the previous lessee.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(LB BEMN)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leased assets (Continued)

(f)
(ii)

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease
is amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the

lease term of 50 years. Impairment losses are recognised in
accordance with accounting policy set out in note 2(g)(ii).

(g
@)

Impairment of assets
Impairment of trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables that are stated at cost or
amortised cost are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to determine whether there is objective evidence
of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment includes
observable data that comes to the attention of the Group
about one or more of the following loss events:

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; and

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

i B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

() Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Impairment of trade and other receivables
(Continued)

If such evidence exists, any impairment loss is determined
and recognised. The impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition of these
assets), where the effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where these financial assets
share similar risk characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and have not been individually assessed as impaired.
Future cash flows for financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based on historical loss
experience for assets with credit risk characteristics similar
to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised,
the impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss. A
reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s
carrying amount exceeding that which would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years.

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding
assets directly, except for impairment losses recognised
in respect of trade debtors, whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote. In this case, the impairment losses
for doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance account.
When the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off against trade
debtors directly and any amounts held in the allowance
account relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously charged to the allowance
account are reversed against the allowance account.
Other changes in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off directly are
recognised in profit or loss.
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62 RAYMOND Industrial Ltd.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(LB BEMN)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(g9 Impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to identify indications
that the following assets may be impaired or an impairment
loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;

- pre-paid interests in leasehold land classified as
being held for own use under operating leases; and

- investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely independent of those
from other assets, the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) 4

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

() Impairment of assets (Continued)
(ii) Impairment of other assets (Continued)
- Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit
to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis,
and then, to reduce the carrying amount of other assets in
the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs of disposal (if measureable) or
value in use (if determinable).

- Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the
asset’s carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited to profit or loss
in the year in which the reversals are recognised.

(h) Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula
and comprises all cost of purchases, cost of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(LB BEMN)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)  Inventories (Continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all
losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as
a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

(i) Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts (see note 2(g)(i)), except where the receivables
are interest-free loans made to related parties without any
fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost
less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.

(i) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in
accordance with note 2(0)(), trade and other payables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

(k)  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

i B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()  Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

Contributions to mandatory provident fund as required
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance and to retirement benefit schemes for the
employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) are recognised as an expense
in profit or loss as incurred.

(i) Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity (see note 2(m)).

(m)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme under which
the Group receives services or goods from its directors,
employees and other eligible persons as consideration for
share options of the Company. The fair value of the services
or goods received in exchange for the grant of the share
options is recognised as an expense. The total amount to
be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of
the share options, which is measured at grant date using
the Black Scholes model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. Where
the counterparties have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the options, the total
estimated fair value of the options is spread over the vesting
period, taking into account the probability that the options
will vest.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(LB BEMN)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions (Continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share options that
is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment
to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is
charged/credited to profit or loss for the year of the review,
unless the original expenses qualify for recognition as an
asset, with a corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve. On vesting date, the amount recognised as an
expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of options
that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market price of the
Company’s shares. The equity amount is recognised in the
capital reserve until either the option is exercised (when
it is transferred to the share premium account (prior to 3
March 2014) or included in the amount recognised in share
capital for the shares issued (on or after 3 March 2014)) or
the option expires (when it is released directly to retained
earnings).

(n)

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Income tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.

RAYMOND Industrial Ltd. | Annual Report 2015

2 FESTTEE®)

(m) RREAURGREWER ()

REEHRE - AHRBcBRERA BEESZ - BRNBE
FRBRZ B2 AFEEH ZEMHE - S FAE
BERENHEE  BIERREEZASATERR/E
B UNEARETIELEEAR - NBEERA  DHAR
X eRERAEERREE BREHE (XRNEXFE
PYEREERE) AEEEDRARFRN TEMER 5
BIREMBEERI - RASBERNEAFERER - BT
BREETE (BABRANEE(FR2014F3A3HAER
EREEN 201453 A3 B #E TG S BHERERAT))
SBERERER (EREREIREFAN) -

(n) FIBH
AREEMESHEEABRFBEMECHBEENAEZE
o AERBMELERBEEN BB ZEBYEBRIE AR
R BHREERERAAEMEEmBGFSERIEBHEEE - 8
DREREEMEEIBE R -

AREIR AT AR BB A, RIS s 5
KEE LO AN HEHEMEREN 2 HIE - LB
F RS BB A E (3% o

BEERBEAENABABAATENRERVEREZRE
E-EREZRREEERABAEMMB2WME W ZREE
HEMEZZR  FRIEHIREE A AR BHRIEER
RAMBRBBRES ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

i B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)  Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period,
or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are those temporary differences arising from
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of
a business combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case
of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of
the reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(LB BEMN)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)  Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised.
Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against
deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the following additional conditions
are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected
to be settled or recovered, intend to realise
the current tax assets and settle the current
tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) 4

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group or the Company has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

(p)  Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i) Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered at the
customers’ premises which is taken to be the point in time
when the customer has accepted the goods and the related
risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes value
added tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any
trade discounts.

(ii) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(LB BEMN)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(q)  Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in
a foreign currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the closing foreign exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the exchange
reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount
of the exchange differences relating to that foreign operation
is reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or
loss on disposal is recognised.

(r)  Product development costs

Expenditure on development activities, whereby research
findings are applied to a plan or design for the production
of new or substantially improved products and processes,
is capitalised if the product or process is technically and
commercially feasible and the Group has sufficient resources
and the intention to complete development. The expenditure
capitalised includes the costs of materials, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Development
expenditure is recognised as an expense in the period in
which it is incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) 4

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Related parties

A person, or a close member of that person’s family,
is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or
(iii) is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or the Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

(Vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (i).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

(vii)  The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group’s parent.

i B B &t

(VBB REMN)

FESTEE®)

BEAL

FAEUTEEZ —HALTREERKEK B BHE
AREERERR )

(i AR BB PR B g RS
(i) HAEEEEATE %
(i) AEEHAEEGTREEEZERABRNKE -

B AT R Z — B RASRE R A S EHREH T -

(i EENAEE SRR —KETHKE (AR QT
MEF AR SBERRERT) -

i) EE/II—HKEXRNBEEARNEEAF]
(REERZAII—REENEEK M Z

NEIHEERT]) °
(i) MEREERA—EAE=ZFHNEERF] -

vy DERZFRKEBEZNEENRERRNME R
TER

ERAEZNERERNBERT] -

v  DEA—EERKEFNGE - BB
WX AR AR E R B A & B A B
7\30

(Vi)  DERFETE( TRENA TS S HKFE
il -

(vi)  EFEEO) FTREMATHEREEATE -
IAATRER(KERNBRANERE
BAR -

Vi) % K FEE LAKEATRERR

SESRRREETEETEABRY -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(LB BEMN)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s) Related parties (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

(t)  Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided regularly
to the Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments
have similar economic characteristics and are similar in
respect of the nature of products and services, the nature
of production processes, the type or class of customers,
the methods used to distribute the products or provide
the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material may
be aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

3 REVENUE

The principal activities of the Group are the manufacture and
sale of electrical home appliances.

Revenue represents the sales value of goods supplied to

customers, net of discounts, returns and value added tax or
other sales taxes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BRA M
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(B REN)
4  OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET 4  HtWAKZF (EE), Wa
(LOSS)/INCOME
2015 2014
HK$ HK$
ki okia
Other revenue Hlt A
Bank interest income HRTTHEHA 2,370,996 1,948,507
Other net (loss)/income Hib® (&18) W
Gain on disposal of scrap materials HEREHBYI S 890,733 1,143,031
Net exchange gain/(loss) BN B (B18) 806,085 (1,169,562)
Net (loss)/gain on disposal of LEME - BE KR ET
property, plant and equipment (&18) s (3,600,324) 229,214
Sample sales income EL e 276,789 117,122
Subsidy income B 14,321 22,294
Reversal of overprovision of unused MR REE LR
staff welfare fund upon ZRE 2 RAETER
deregistration of a subsidiary 1,319,946 -
Sundry income Halzs 148,129 599,060
(144,321) 941,159
5  PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 5 BRBUATLER
Profit before taxation is arrived after charging: BRAR AR A TS HIBR N5 S IR 2R
2015 2014
HK$ HK$
ikl ks
(a)  Staff costs (@ FEERX
Salaries, wages and e TEREMER
other benefits 170,205,864 154,975,433
Discretionary bonuses BB EE L fEAL 1,985,000 2,398,000
Contributions to defined TE B SRR 5T &I IR
contribution retirement
plans 17,498,246 17,616,176
189,689,110 174,989,609
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B B &t

(LB BEN)

5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued)

Profit before taxation is arrived after charging:

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

5 BRFLADRF ()
B 4 AT % U T A 0B T3 S IE 4 i B

2015 2014
HK$ HK$
(b)  Otheritems b) EHtEE
Cost of inventories sold HEGFENA
(note 13(b))* (BF5E13(0)) * 886,596,543 911,917,905
Amortisation of interests in BHEBBECEHEREER
leasehold land held for 2 TS
own use under operating
leases 399,635 424,652
Depreciation e 34,754,459 36,620,772
Auditor’s remuneration ZEE S 692,000 667,000
Product development costs EmBERKA 510,567 916,962
# Cost of inventories includes HK$187,294,585 (2014:  * HEGFTERANEREESNKARITE RBE 187,294,585 7T

HK$173,532,097) relating to staff costs and depreciation,
which amounts are also included in the respective total
amounts disclosed separately above or in note 5(a) for each

of these types of expenses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6

i B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(@) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or (@) i

loss represents:

4

(L B% B ) 4

mEBERZAER

FRERKREN A

2015 2014
HK$ HK$
il okia
Current tax - Hong Kong EEEBIE — BEEMEH
Profits Tax
Provision for the year (note 12(a)) IR (FsE12(0) 2,794,522 4,681,115
Over-provision in respect of TFERERS
prior years (300,142) (10,001)
2,494,380 4,671,114
Current tax - PRC Enterprise REEHRE — FECEREHR
Income Tax
Provision for the year (note 12(a)) RERE (M5 12() 2,065,922 3,033,651
Under-provision in respect TFEERERD
of prior years 5,109,828 7,701,861
7,175,750 10,735,512
Deferred tax EEHIE
Origination and reversal of RIERIEE R EEN
temporary differences EEAEREE (MFE12(0)))
(note 12(b)) (1,253,260) 476,607
Income tax expense FER 8,416,870 15,883,233
0] The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated (i) BERFEHIIEBAFEE G ERE R AKX

at 16.5% (2014: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable

profits for the year.

(i) Taxation of subsidiaries in the PRC are calculated (i)
using the applicable income tax rate of 25% (2014:

25%).

16.5% (2014 4F : 16.5% ) IR &4 ©

TEFR B M B R R BRI R M SRR K 25% (2014 £F
25%) 8 o
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R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(ABEREMN)

6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(Continued)

(b) Reconciliation between

income tax expense and ()

accounting profit at the applicable tax rates:

GmEBRERZAEH @)

R RPN GBI k&R -

2015 2014
HK$ HK$
ki B
Profit before taxation BR T A& A 44,745,339 44,169,624
Notional tax on profit before LEMEtEEATEE
taxation, calculated at the ZBRBADRE A BRI
rates applicable to profits in
the jurisdictions concerned 8,067,865 8,454,654
Tax effect of non-deductible TR OB 2 2 B o &
expenses 476,252 172,625
Tax effect of non-taxable income FEERBMBMAZ RIS E (4,998,568) (345,924)
Effect of temporary differences MRS BB E
not recognised 61,635 (89,982)
Under-provisions in respect of FEEFRERD
prior years, net 4,809,686 7,691,860
Actual tax expense BRI H 8,416,870 15,883,233
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR B M &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) 4
(ABHREN)

7 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 7 EEME

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)  EZHESRIFZEEC A BUER)E 381(1) ik & A A1<F Al #1572
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the ~ #&EELAT :

Companies (Disclosure of information about Benefits of

Directors) Regulation are as follows:

Salaries,
allowances
and benefits Discretionary  Retirement
Directors’ in kind bonuses scheme
Year ended 31 December 2015 fees & ®1& contributions Total
Z2015F 12831 AEEL e EMRERN  BREA RASHN At
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Executive directors BTES
Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae BERFRE(FE)

(Chairman) 150,000 11,410 200,000 - 361,410
Mr. Wong, John Ying Man HRESE 170,000 3,696,616 300,000 240,000 4,406,616
Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin BNBAE 170,000 3,251,410 300,000 295,000 4,016,410
Mr. Mok, Kin Hing RRELE 150,000 1,864,000 200,000 120,750 2,334,750
Non-executive directors FETES
Mr. Xiong, Zhengfeng BRFIES A 150,000 - - - 150,000
Ms. Li, Yinghong FRRAT/NE 150,000 - - - 150,000
Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit ERATAE 150,000 - - - 150,000
Independent non-executive BYFHTES

directors
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung PR E 210,000 - - - 210,000
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da BIEEE 210,000 - - - 210,000
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming mEREE 210,000 - - - 210,000
Mr. Lo, Wilson Kwong Shun BEERE 210,000 - - - 210,000
Alternate directors RES
Mr. Zhang, Yuankun SRITHLAE - 160,927 - - 160,927

1,930,000 8,984,363 1,000,000 655,750 12,570,113
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR B s

> (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(AW REN)

7  DIRECTORS REMUNERATION (Contnued) 7  EE#ME (@)

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)  EE B RIFEBCA TUERHI NS 381(1) & XA R ST RIS S 2
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the ~ #XFRIAT : (&)

Companies (Disclosure of information about Benefits of

Directors) Regulation are as follows (continued):

Salaries,
allowances
and benefits  Discretionary Retirement
Directors’ in kind bonuses scheme
Year ended 31 December 2014 fees e B contributions Total
2201451231 BEEL we  EMREF  BREL BREER G
HK$ HKS HKS HKS HKS$
B Vot B B Vit
Executive directors BTES
Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae BRMEE (FE)

(Chairman) 120,000 18,910 215,000 - 353,910
Mr. Wong, John Ying Man HRESE 140,000 3,913,963 315,000 240,000 4,608,963
Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin BENELE 140,000 3,258,910 310,000 240,000 3,948,910
Mr. Mok, Kin Hing Rlgmis 120,000 1,871,500 215,000 112,500 2,319,000
Non-executive directors FHITES
Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang BYFEL

(resigned on 26 May 2014) (201445 A 26 AEHT) 47,671 - - - 47,671
Mr. Xiong, Zhengfeng BRIRIESEAE 120,000 - - - 120,000
Ms. Li, Yinghong ZRRAT/NE 120,000 - - - 120,000
Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit HRERE

(appointed on 26 May 2014) (20145 B 26 HE(T) 72,329 - - - 72,329
Independent non-executive BYFHTES

directors
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung RS 180,000 - - - 180,000
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da BlELE 180,000 - - - 180,000
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming hRRTE 180,000 - - - 180,000
Mr. Lo, Wilson Kwong Shun BERERE 180,000 - - - 180,000
Alternate directors RES
Mr. Zhang, Yuankun RILHES A - 166,946 - - 166,946
Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit HRGERE

(until 26 May 2014) (B2014F57268) - - - - -

1,600,000 9,230,229 1,065,000 592,600 12,477,729
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

i B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

8 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three
(2014: three) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed
in note 7. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the
other two (2014: two) individuals are as follows:

(BB REMN)

8 fERZRSHMAL

AREESURSHMALHEEIAM (20144 : 3f)EF -
WEHMEEEHNMGET - R 26 (2014 : 2fL) ZEH
ALEZBENIT

2015 2014

HK$ HK$

i Nokcs

Salaries and other emoluments e R E b 1,279,640 1,280,890
Discretionary bonuses [y eraAn 170,000 190,000
Retirement scheme contributions RIREHEFR 106,200 106,200
1,555,840 1,577,090

The emoluments of the other two (2014 two) individuals
with the highest emoluments are within the following band:

ERIR=HFIMA L 26 (2014 5F : 26) IS ERI ST :

Number of individuals

AE
2015 2014
HK$Nil — HK$ 1,000,000 BB Z T2 B#1,000,000 7T 2 2

9 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of
HK$36,328,469 (2014: HK$28,286,391) and the weighted
average number of 475,053,080 (2014: 468,246,591)
ordinary shares in issue during the year, calculated as
follows:

9 BREF

@) BREXEF

ERERBN ZAERARDRIREEELEELEHN
7B 136,328,469 70 (2014 4F : & ¥ 28,286,3917C ) & 1R

BERZ BT I T R’ 475,053,080 (2014 4F -
468,246,501) Li@EMETE ¢

—T-RHEFHR |

FREZERLA 4 79



80 RAYMOND Industrial Ltd.
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R B MEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(LB REN)
9  EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued) 9 BRERME
(@) Basic earnings per share (Continued) @ BREXEF @
Weighted average number of ordinary shares EERMEE G RE
2015 2014

Issued ordinary shares at 1 January W1 A1BEB# T2 BiK 469,429,260 466,779,260
Effect of share options exercised T RE 2 R

(note 20(a)(ii)) (Fff 5 20(a)(ii)) 5,623,820 1,467,331
Weighted average number of W12 A31 B2

ordinary shares at 31 December L mAR N AR 2 475,053,080 468,246,591
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) BREFEF

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of
HK$36,328,469 (2014: HK$28,286,391) and the weighted
average number of 482,478,929 (2014: 474,904,060)
ordinary shares, calculated as follows:

FREERR 2 it E RN B IR (G & 2 E 555 778
5 36,328,469 7T (2014 £F : 7B 28,286,391 7T ) M ANAEF 15
fi% 8k 482,478,929 (2014 £ : 474,904,060) Li@ARstE -

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted)  %i& RN RE (#55)
2015 2014

Weighted average number of P12 A31 B2 E@A%

ordinary shares at 31 December 2 INFEFE AR BX 475,053,080 468,246,591
Effect of deemed issue of shares RIEA A R BT

under the Company’s share NEREEERTT

option scheme for nil I 2 22 (M5 19)

consideration (note 19) 7,425,849 6,657,469
Weighted average number of M12 A31 Bz LA

ordinary shares (diluted) Z I RS (#E)

at 31 December 482,478,929 474,904,060
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

10 SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and
sale of electrical home appliances. In a manner consistent
with the way in which information is reported internally to the
Group’s senior management for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment, the Group has
identified five reportable segments on a geographical basis:
Japan, the United States, the PRC, Europe and rest of the
world. The electrical home appliances are manufactured in
the Group’s manufacturing facilities located in the PRC. The
“rest of the world” segment covers sales of electrical home
appliances to customers in Australia, Canada and Hong
Kong.

() Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s senior
executive management monitors the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the
following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible assets and current
assets with the exception of tax balances. Segment
liabilities include trade creditors, accrued charges and other
payables, with the exception of tax balances and dividends
payable, attributable to the manufacture and sale activities
of the individual segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments
or which otherwise arise from other revenue and net loss/
income, and the depreciation and amortisation of assets
attributable to those segments.

The measurement used for reporting segment profit is
“adjusted EBITDA” i.e. “adjusted earnings before interest,
taxes, depreciation and amortisation”. To arrive at adjusted
EBITDA, the Group’s earnings are further adjusted for items
not specifically attributed to individual segments, such as
other head office or corporate administration costs.

i B B &t

(VBB REMN)

10 PR
AEBEFEEBRUERMERAER - CIREAEES
BETHEREABRIES BEBERDES BERA R
TEBE-BZAREE  AEEBEATEEBEES
BrAAEZE FE BNRERSH o AEEBER
TR BMEETRE o 552 RS aEEER A
BRERN - MEARBBZES o

@ oHFE BERERE

DHEMEREAEEZRSETHREREABRTEDEE
RBE5n B BERMRAZER —BZ A RE - st

$’§IZWJ‘HE&EE¥AET5&LATﬁ MBI A
ENEELZEE  EEMAE

oif

DHEEBRMBEANVEENRDEE  ETERERAR
EIFIE - DHREREE S REMENFALRER -
BN ERE(ER D B REIG 2 AR THIE R AR

WA R X 2 IRAI # & 0 G AT EE 4 2 S5 & 88 X %
EE X HAZED BEEEMBARFER
BEFEMBEMEL 2 UOREZFDE

FBbFT
=

s+ A

MR R FFTIRA 2 & A [ B FHEEEBITDAL » BD [ K&t
FE - FiIE - PERBHEATZEARRT] - BERCHAE
EBITDA + A&E 2w F W B TR HERN S H2BEE (1
MRESR A BIFTERA AN ) HE — P E R A% ©

“T-AEFHR | MREEER2F 4 8|



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR B s

> (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(LB REN)

10 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 10 DEHE @

(@) Segment results, assets and liabilities (2) Z®WEE BEREG@)
(Continued)

In addition to receiving segment information concerning RESHE B FAREEBITDA Z 5 HERIN - BIREITVERH#
adjusted EBITDA, management is provided with segment BN ZHEE S - FIEWMA KBS - TERMEESE
information concerning inter-segment sales, interest income  RE&HF 2 BRMEMELED A2 IERDOIBEEZ
and expense from cash balances managed directly by the ~ D EBER} o NEBH FHE 2 BIRSEHINEES L 2 BEE o
segments, depreciation and amortisation and additions to

non-current segment assets used by the segments in their

operations. Inter-segment sales are priced with reference to

prices charged to external parties for similar orders.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as  BERHE FASEEGZREITREERE A B USRER KTE
provided to the Group’s most senior executive management 73 &b IR 2 ERE IR T X °

for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of

segment performance for the year is set out below.

Electrical home appliances

FREE
The United States The PRC Japan Europe Rest of the world Total
%8 tE BA Bl HREH ait

05 01| 5| 0| 15| Nt4| 05| 01| A5| 04| 05| A
HKS'000 | HKS000 | HKS000 | HKS000 | HKS000 | HKS000 | HKS000 | HKS000 | HKS000 | HKSO00 | HKS000 | HKS000
BRTR | BUTT | RBTR | ARTT | RRR | ARTT | ARTR | BRTT | BRTR | BRTR | RRTR | ARTT

Revenue from external P ZIA
customers 316,433 | 347174 | 58499 | 105844 | 269,076 | 256,045 | 181,274 | 192,194 | 163,167 | 133618 | 988,449 | 1034875

Inter-segment revenue RSB - - | 507,589 | 556,421 - - - - | 839524 | 870496 |1,347,113 | 1426917

Reportable segment THEABYUA
revenue 316,433 | 347,174 | 566,088 | 662,205 | 269,076 | 256,045 | 181,274 | 192,194 | 1,002,691 | 1,004,114 2,335,562 | 2,461,792

Reportable segment profit T 2 5hEA
(adjusted EBITDA) (CHAZEBITDA) 19140 | 26276 3,538 8012 | 16,276 | 19379 | 10966 | 14547 | 59,572 | 62,140 | 109492 | 130,354

Reportable segment HEANEE
assets - - | 328371 | 485990 - - -

551,180 | 488919 | 879,951 | 974909

Addiions to non-current AERERBATEEEN

segment assets during

the year - - 18789 | 37,061 - - - - - 4761 18,789 | 87537
Reportable segment HEAEE

liabilities (194) (194) | (106,684) | (162,710) - - - - | (200,718) | (215.270) | (316,59) | (378,174
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iR B M &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) 4
(ABHREN)

10 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 10 ZDEPRE (@)
AREDTHWA - 8% - EEREBEZYER

(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment (b)
revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Revenue LON
Reportable segment revenue Al RS SR A 2,335,562 2,461,792
Elimination of inter-segment revenue ~ PIEB5 SRUA I §5 (1,347,113) (1,426,917)
Consolidated revenue LA A 088,449 1,034,875
Profit A
Reportable segment profit AJRE D EEF 109,492 130,354
Elimination of inter-segment profits BEyan vl (49,704) (52,029)
Reportable segment profit derived HAREEEINEF 2
from Group’s external customers A #hE o EE 59,788 78,325
Other revenue and net (loss)/income  E MU A K% (E5318) /Uezs 2,227 2,890
Net foreign exchange gain upon B ARGEEL
deregistration of a subsidiary HNEE 5 R S 17,884 -
Depreciation and amortisation TE R (35,154) (37,045)
Consolidated profit before taxation LA BRT AR T 44,745 44,170
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets AHREDIHEE 879,551 974,909
Elimination of inter-segment N EB 5 BB FE UL BR TR R 35
receivables (140,904) (178,741)
738,647 796,168
Tax recoverable AR [EFHIE 1,550 -
Deferred tax assets RIEFGIAE 2= 8,346 7,476
Consolidated total assets RAEEE 748,543 803,644
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(ABEREMN)

10 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 10 ZEBEE (5
(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment (b)) THRETHWA - B - BEEREBEZHEK
revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities (%)
(Continued)
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Liabilities =N
Reportable segment liabilities AHESHaE (316,596) (378,174)
Elimination of inter-segment WEB D BB FE (S BR TR R 85
payables 142,913 178,742
(173,683) (199,432)
Dividends payable FERTAR B, (204) (155)
Tax payable FERHIE (10,095) (7,635)
Deferred tax liabilities BAERIBEE (168) (174)
Consolidated total liabilities REBAaE (184,150) (207,396)
(€)  Major customers () EEEF

Revenue from major customers, each of whom amounted to

REBEPABZRA  BEF D HERAA10%IA

10% or more of the total revenue, is set out below: o F#PT
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
AT T BT T
Customer A BEA 270,032 264,601
Customer B ®FB 210,198 221,736
Customer C ®FC 176,379 185,842
Customer D ®FD 161,395 169,901
Customer E ®PFE 100,850 N/A*
# The corresponding revenue did not contribute 10% or more ~ # BRAWATZ R EU A 10% A E °

of the total revenue.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR B M=t
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(B REN)
Il PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 11 BEEE
AND LEASEHOLD LAND
(@) Reconciliation of carrying amount (@) IREEENE
Interests in Interests in
leasehold land leasehold land
held for own use held for own
under finance Furniture, use under
leases Buildings held fixtures and Sub-totaloperating leases
Construction MEHXAE forownuse  Plantand  equipment Motor RESERE Total
inprogress  fEBR  HEBR  machinery BA- vehicles HEBR  BETEE
AEIR  zitBR ZEEN  REREE RERRR AE Nt 2tibER &t
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HK$
Cost: A
At1 January 2014 R2O04E1A1E 4825160 5235120 196523782 200838283 115596976 13712273 545731603 17,105,493 562,837,096
Exchange adjustments ~ BiAiE (18977) - (661661) (592,948 (504,982) (38595 (1817,163) (67,276) (1,884,439
Addtions 0 22,019,485 - - 13618224 4173479 637439 40,508,627 - 40,508,627
Transfers &y (19,902,647) - - 5840211 13,984,537 77,839 - - -
Disposals e - - - (4407155 (1,055048)  (367.925) (6,030,128 - (6,080,128)
At 31 December 2014 R2014E12A31 B 6923030 5235120 195,862,121 224356675 131,994,962 14,021,031 578392939 17038217 595,431,156
At 1 January 2015 R201551R10 6923030 5235120 195,862,121 224,306,675 131,994,962 14,021,081 578392939  17,088217 595,431,156
Exchange adjustments RAEE (407,848) - (9871979 (9,737,030)  (8,530,110) (682,934)  (29129,901) (1,008,752  (30,133,659)
Additions bl 7407074 - - 391,763 7,145,700 3143% 18,788,932 - 18788932
Transfers &y (11,325,884) - - 798317 10,527,567 - - - -
Disposdls it - - - (5096869 (6956339  (1968200)  (14,021,408) - (14,021,408
At 31 December 2015 2015512 A 318 2996,372 5235120 185,990,142 214242856 134,181,780 11,784,292 554,030562 16,034,465 570,065,027
—TRFFR | FIREEXERAR 4 85
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(LB BEN)

Il PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT || BEEE @)
AND LEASEHOLD LAND (Continued)
(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (Continued) ~ (2) SREEENE (5
Interests in Interests in
leasehold land leasehold land
held for own use held for own
under finance Furniture, use under
leases Buildings held fixtures and Sub-totaloperating leases
Construction MEHXAE forownuse  Plantand  equipment Motor RESERE Total
inprogress  ¥fEBR  HEBR  machinery BA- vehicles HEBR  BETEE
EIR ZiwBE  2BEN  ERERER ZERRR HE Nt 2LibER it
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HK$
Accumulated SHEERTE:
amortisation and
depreciation:
At 1 January 2014 R2O04E1A1E - 1779938 130,696,788 147,011,857 50287812 10,091,613 348,868,008 7,567,343 356,435,351
Exchange adjustments Jokbok - - (466,803 (345,853) (248,122) (28797)  (1,089,575) (29,762 (1,119,337)
Charge for the year TEENE - 104708 7335449 0360891 18532264 1278465 36,620,772 44652 37,045,424
Disposals e - - - (1,18869)  (1,096,184) (275815 (2,520,6%) - (252069
At 31 December 2014 2014512 A31H - 10884641 146565434 154847199 67515770 11065466 381878510 7,962,233 389,840,743
At 1 January 2015 R2015F1 A 18 - 10884641 146565434 154847199 67515770 11065466 381878510 7,962,233 389,840,743
Bichange adiustments ~ RHAEE - - (730544 (pBA2102) (4731525 (476,303 (18200474 (469,089)  (18,669,543)
Charge for the year TEENE - 104703 6949602 8183134 18557911 959,100 34,754,459 30963 35,154,094
Disposals e - - - (4192018)  (4157001)  (1,746283) (10,095,302 - (10,095,302
At 31 December 2015 2015512 318 - 1980344 146,164,492 153,196,213 77,185,155 9,801,989 388337193 7,892,799 396,229,992
Carrying value: BEFE:
At 31 December 2015 R015512 4318 2596372 3245776 39825650 61046643 56996625 1982303 165693369 8141666 173,835,035
At 31 December 2014 RO14E12A31 A 6,923030 3350479 49296687 69509476 64479192 2955565 196514429 9075984 205,590,413
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BRA M
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(B REN)
Il PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT I BEEE @)
AND LEASEHOLD LAND (Continued)
(b)  The analysis of carrying value of properties  (P) WREEFEIMAT
is as follows:
2015 2014
HK$ HK$
ikl Nodacs
Medium-term leases PHITEE
—in Hong Kong — &5 8,956,410 9,847,003
— outside Hong Kong — AL 42,256,682 51,876,147
51,213,092 61,723,150
Representing: #aRK
Buildings held for own use FEB REEY 39,825,650 49,296,687
Interests in leasehold land held RIEFEHAERIEER
for own use under finance leases 2 i 3,245,776 3,350,479
Interests in leasehold land held RIELEHERFIEER
for own use under 2 iR
operating leases 8,141,666 9,075,984
51,213,092 61,723,150

<
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

i B Hiat
I > (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(ABEREMN)

12 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 12 RGEMBRARNFAEH
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2 AL D 9 VA
(@) Current taxation in the consolidated (2 mEMBRRRZPAEB
statement of financial position represents:

2015 2014
HK$ HK$
ikl Nodacs
Provision for the year (note 6(a)) KEZEEAE (MIFE6@)
- Hong Kong Profits Tax — BAFEH 2,794,522 4,681,115
- PRC Enterprise Income Tax — PR {ERTER 2,065,922 3,033,651
4,860,444 7,714,766
Provisional tax paid SEE U
— Hong Kong Profits Tax — BTSN (4,415,970) (2,267,257)
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax — PEPEMEH (387,712) (1,531,667)
(4,803,682) (3,798,924)
56,762 3,915,842
Balance of income tax provisions FEERSTEEARE
relating to prior years 8,488,790 3,719,432
8,545,552 7,635,274
Represented by: EX
Tax recoverable AR O] 18 1,549,617 253
Tax payable FERIR (10,095,169) (7,635,527)
(8,545,552) (7,635,274)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

i B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

12 INCOMETAX INTHE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

(@) Current taxation in the consolidated
statement of financial position represents:
(Continued)

Note:

Included in the balance of income tax provisions relating to prior
years is a provision, net of payment, of approximately HK$8,412,100
(2014: HK$3,653,000) for the potential tax adjustment relating to
transfer pricing audit in respect of the years ended 31 December
2002 to 2011 by the PRC tax authorities.

In 2013, the PRC tax authorities initiated a transfer pricing audit
on a subsidiary of the Company in the PRC in respect of the
years ended 31 December 2002 to 2011. The Group has been in
discussions with the PRC tax authorities with a view to conclude
the transfer pricing audit. So far no determination has been made
by the PRC tax authorities. During the year ended 31 December
2014 and 2015, the Group, taking into consideration of the recent
negotiations between the officials of Nansha tax bureau, has made
the above provision against the potential tax exposures estimated
by the management. At 31 December 2015, the total provisions
made against the potential tax adjustment relating to the transfer
pricing audit amounted to approximately HK$12,556,000 (2014:
HK$7,572,000).

The Group will continue to monitor the progress of the
transfer pricing audit and vigorously defend the Group’s
position. Due to uncertainty inherent in the transfer pricing
audit, its outcome could be different from the amount
provided and such difference would impact the income tax
provision in the year in which any determination is made.

(BB REMN)

12 RESHBRRROAEHR @)

@) HSEMBRRRZAEHR G

B

m

EREMNBIERRERE  FZN - ©75%8412,1007T (2014 F -
713,653,000 7T ) =R EI R FTEE & A B 2002 FF = 2011 F 12 A 31
HEEERER 2 BERIEAZE -

F20134F  REBMAESE N F —HE A aH [ 20024 £ 2011
FI2AAFEEREE - FEHEPEBAAIEREEES
e 2S5BS AETR - BE2014F12A31BFER
2015F 12 A1 BIEFEILEETBAEEMNTRPERTERE
BRERME SEERBEMRBERBELRE - R2015F12 A
31 HEBEREREEE RGBS 12,556,0007T (20144F 12 A
31H : ##7,572,0007T) °

SESHEESRERERTSETIABEERERE - AT HE
FERERBERE CRRERIERBAEZE  ZEANRNEER
ZEERmB -

—T-REFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(LB BEN)

12 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 12 REEHBERRTRNWAEE @)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities (by CHERELHEEERAS:
recognised:
2015 2014
HK$ HK$
i Nokio
Net deferred tax assets SFRIERIEE E (8,345,504) (7,476,336)
Net deferred tax liabilities SRR A S 167,906 174,142
(8,177,598) (7,302,194)

The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position and the

movements during the year are as follows:

Depreciation

AFEEREAVBRARTERR ZELERE(EE) 8
BV R BB 2 BT

allowances
in excess of
the related Other
depreciation temporary
Deferred tax arising from: Tax losses WEREMK differences Total
EEBEZEEH RIS REBITE HaEEER At
HKS HK$ HKS HKS$
B okia iokia ks
At 1 January 2014 R2014%F1 A1 H (168,610) 55,647 (7,692,016) (7,804,979)
Exchange adjustments HmEg o528 - - 26,178 26,178
Charged to profit orloss ~ 1Ei& FZEsIE 2
(note 6(a)) Nk (FiFE6() 33,874 5,825 436,908 476,607
At 31 December 2014 MR2014% 12 A31 H (134,736) 61,472 (7,228,930) (7,302,194)
At 1 January 2015 201541 A1 R (134,736) 61,472 (7,228,930) (7,302,194)
Exchange adjustments Hings) w28 - - 377,856 377,856
Charged to profit or loss e sk & 18
(note 6(a)) 2k (Mi5E6() 34,847 7,700 (1,295,807) (1,253,260)
At 31 December 2015 2015412 531 H (99,889) 69,172 (8,146,881) (8,177,598)

RAYMOND Industrial Ltd.

| Annual Report 2015



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

8RB Mia
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) 4
(UBBREN)
13 INVENTORIES 13 #=FE
(@) Inventories in the consolidated statement of (2) RESUBRRREERRE
financial position comprise:
2015 2014
HK$ HK$
ik s
Raw materials R K 59,283,621 84,952,136
Work in progress H R 51,312,369 60,935,360
Finished goods EERK & 77,340 184,556
Goods in transit TEE XYL 1,662,110 -
112,335,440 146,072,052

(b)  The analysis of the amount of inventories (b) BELEZINMCEILEANT :
recognised as an expense is as follows:

2015 2014
HK$ HK$
s B
Carrying amount of inventories sold FERIHERAEE 882,429,849 912,432,477
Write-down of inventories GFERE 4,166,694 232,747
Reversal of write-down of FERE R #

inventories - (747,319)
886,596,543 911,917,905

14 TRADEAND OTHER RECEIVABLES 14 EBFREMEWRIRE
2015 2014
HK$ HK$
it B
Trade debtors B HEEA 185,064,826 206,022,667
Other debtors HEEEA 10,661,959 14,646,610
Deposits and prepayments HES SN 12,278,479 10,826,963
208,005,264 231,496,240

All of the trade and other receivables, apart from FIEE S REMEKIRIE - RElHhike A 3,538,958
certain deposits amounting to HK$3,538,958 (2014:  JL(20144F : & 2,048,543 L) » Hii 1 FAAJ IR E sk iR
HK$2,048,543), are expected to be recovered or recognised A& °

as expenses within one year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(LB BEN)

14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

(@)  Ageing analysis

The ageing analysis of trade debtors as of the end of the
reporting period, based on invoice date, is as follows:

14 EBEZREMEWRIRE

@) FREDT

RERREZEHAZRRIZEZAHOFOT

2015 2014

HK$ HK$

bt Nikect

Within 1 month 1EAR 88,471,436 86,985,887
1 to 3 months 1{EAZ=31@A 87,827,025 104,699,930
3to 12 months 3MEAZE1218A 8,277,754 14,306,732
Over 12 months HBid 1218 A 488,611 30,118
185,064,826 206,022,667

Trade debtors are due within 30 to 120 days from the date
of billing. Further details on the Group’s credit policy are set
out in note 22(a).

(b) Trade debtors that are not impaired

The ageing analysis of trade debtors that are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as
follows:

BB ARBEHRHZEBHLIOE120KRNEE - REEZ
EEBEERFHNME223@)

by RERBEZESZEKA

BHEHAZREDITIR BB DA EERENT

2015 2014

HK$ HKS$

Voo okia

Neither past due nor impaired RAEBEISORE 176,791,030 184,266,835

Less than 1 month past due B DR A 2,746,530 14,967,282

1 to 3 months past due w1 HA 1 & A = 31E A 4,794,902 5,237,506
More than 3 months but less than wHARRA 3 E AE D

12 months past due R121E A 293,333 1,537,404

More than 12 months past due E AR 1218 A 439,031 13,640

Amounts past due BHSER 8,273,796 21,755,832

185,064,826 206,022,667
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

i B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 14
(Continued)

(b) (b)

Trade debtors that are not impaired
(Continued)

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a wide range of customers for whom there was no recent
history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not
been a significant change in credit quality and the balances
are considered fully recoverable.

EEHEKREER

B RHME

W BRIE (%)

RABEZEZEHA (@)

(BB REMN)

FEYSRIEDR BB MR ER KNS N EF 2B AR -

BENBUEFEARERARE
Rifecsr - RIBBELR  BEERGHSEREEREE
REE R M AAERIE R 2 BB PT LR B EHRE 2

I5 CASHAND CASH EQUIVALENTS 15 RERBEEEEH
2015 2014
HK$ HK$
Vit s
Bank deposits PITEEIE R 147,716,225 74,403,375
Cash at bank and in hand BITER MRS 96,755,955 138,605,445
244,472,180 213,008,820

l6 TRADEAND OTHER PAYABLES l6 EBSKEMENERE
2015 2014
HK$ HK$
e ot
Trade creditors ZSEEA 120,430,319 145,421,767

Accrued charges and FES B R REMEMIRE

other payables 53,253,223 54,009,041
173,683,542 199,430,808

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be
settled within one year.

FrE B 5 R EA RN BRIER A FARSA

<
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R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(LB BEMN)

16 TRADEAND OTHER PAYABLES ( Continued)

The ageing analysis of trade creditors as of the end of the
reporting period, based on invoice date, is as follows:

16

ESREMEMIRIE (®)
RBEBMAESEREAZERIREZAHAIWNT

2015 2014

HK$ HKS$

it Notao

Within 1 month 1EAR 45,531,367 61,340,498
1 to 3 months 1Z£31EA 65,441,307 76,913,878
3 to 12 months 3Z121EA 7,121,873 4,368,430
Over 12 months HBilm121E A 2,335,772 2,798,961
120,430,319 145,421,767

|7 DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT
PLANS

The Group operates the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees
employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance (the “Ordinance”). The scheme is
defined contribution retirement plan administered by an
independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions
to the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income,
subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000
(HK$25,000 prior to June 2014). Contributions to the plan
vest immediately upon the completion of service in the
relevant service period.

At 31 December 2015, certain employees of the Group had
completed the required number of years of service under
the Ordinance and are eligible for long service payments on
termination of their employment. The Group is only liable
to make such payments when the termination meets the
required circumstances specified in the Ordinance and the
employees’ entitlement is not covered by the aforesaid
provident funds. At 31 December 2015, the Group’s
contributions to the MPF Scheme and the accrued interest
thereon exceeded the potential liabilities should the required
circumstances specified in the Ordinance be met.
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17 FREHRFRKEE

AEBZEBRFIMABEHA B ASREDTBEREK
([M&EB D Bl eERFVRIE 2 BB R BIRERFIEAESF
B ([BEeFTE]) - ZAESTEABUETESERE -
BRIFaEETE  AEEREREVY AT AZREEFEH
5% BEEeFEIHENK  He LR AS B 30,0007T
(20144 6 A A1 BB 25,0007T) ° FTA #5737 IR 7% 12 (1 B5
R B & -

f£2015F 12 H31H - AREBEME D E TARBEFHD =
E/BEFEEO (RN D OHRE  CEERARTERITE
BERER%S  AMEHIEIIEEZBERET  AEBAR
ZHHEAZEINBZERETEINERBEREESH
o EMABNEILIEN 2 8 T8 - AEEE2015F 12
A1 BEAESFHEIPEGFTCRBLZNERREEETE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

i B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

17 DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT
PLANS (Continued)

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC also participate in
defined contribution retirement schemes covering its full-
time PRC employees. The schemes are administered by
the relevant government authorities in the PRC. The Group
and the PRC employees are required to make contributions
based on certain percentages of the applicable payroll costs
as stipulated under the requirements in the PRC and the
relevant government authorities undertake to assume the
retirement benefit obligations of all existing and future retired
employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC.

18 BANKING FACILITIES

At 31 December 2015, the Group had unsecured revolving
banking facilities of HK$68,350,000 (2014: HK$68,350,000).
The banking facilities include documentary letters of credit,
trust receipt, bill payables, trade loans and trade guarantee.
The amount utilised by the Group as at 31 December 2015
under these facilities was HK$119,102 (2014: HK$138,907).

19 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

The Company has a share option scheme which was
adopted on 6 June 2003 whereby the directors of the
Company are authorised, at their discretion, to invite (i)
directors, employees of any member of the Group or
any controlling shareholder of the Company (“Controlling
Shareholder”) or any company controlled by a Controlling
Shareholder; (i) holder of any securities issued by any
member of the Group or any Controlling Shareholder of
the Company or any company controlled by a Controlling
Shareholder; and {iii) (a) any business or joint venture partner,
contractor, agent or representative of, (b) any supplier of
goods or services to, or (c) any customer or distributor
of goods or service of, any member of the Group or any
Controlling Shareholder or a company controlled by a
Controlling Shareholder; to take up options to subscribe for
shares of the Company. A nominal consideration of HK$1.00
is paid by these participants for each lot of share options
granted. The options are exercisable from the date of grant
within a period of ten years. Each option gives the holder the
right to subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company.

(VBB REMN)

17 FREMHFRKETE @)

AEEETENHERARFTEATHEEAZBBETRIR
REKETE - WA BIXP BB ARBEEE - AEEX
BTRRUAIRESREBHFEZ —EADLLFELH
R MEBBTAGAEASBETRBENMNBARZER
BEARIKEKRE T ZRIRBHNEE -

18 RITEEHE

f£2015F 12 A31 8 - AEBRRTES 2 EAEEKBEER
%8 JE #) 575 #68,350,000 7T (20144 : 7 # 68,350,000
JL) o RITZEEREEUNRARERIT - EalE - BEE
% BHERNESER ABHCREEEENAEE
119,102 7t (2014 4F : B¥ 138,907 T) °

19 RERECUROGEERRS

ANFR2008F 6 A6 BRI ERETE  ARAIESE
SR ERTER T () AEBEMKE QRSN QR 2R’
AR ER (THER IR ) s IR ATIE S ARIZES ~ B8
(N FEAREEEMAKE - IR E S IE IR EFTIER 2 A
AT 2 AMES 2B A Kii)@ EREBEHRE1ER
e AEE - REERE: Ho)FAERIREHEER
SC)EREF RO HERE - TIAEB(EMAK 8 K IZERIRE
SHERREZES A AT - (TEBREREAD AR
1o 2F ALUBEA T2 REUEIREE —HEEIRE -
EARETTE AR EH L BRI 10F AN - B1ERE TS
AZEFREAR R B — L BAIRIE -

—T-RHEFHR |
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R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(ABEREMN)

19 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED

19 RBEREMURGA/AERRIS (@)

PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a) The terms and conditions of the grants are  (2)

BUERRAY 2 IREEAT -

EXRFERT2BEROT - BFAERBKRE

as follows:
Contractual life
Number of of options
instruments B
ITAZE L FEH
Options granted to directors: BRERTES
—on 30 June 2008 — 200846 A30H 11,767,600 10 years
—on 6 October 2009 — R20094F10A6H 2,700,000 10 years
—on 20 July 2012 — R201247 A20H 11,600,000 10 years
—on 18 January 2013 — 201341 H18H 300,000 10 years
Options granted to employees: BRERTES
—on 30 June 2008 — 200846 A30H 5,770,000 10 years
—on 6 October 2009 — R2009%F 10 H6 H 820,000 10 years
—on 20 July 2012 — R201247 A20H 5,751,000 10 years
Options granted to other eligible persons: BRERTEEBAL
—on 30 June 2008 — 200846 A30H 3,100,000 10 years
—on 20 July 2012 — R201247 A20H 250,000 10 years
Total share options LAREAR I 42,058,600
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19 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) The number and weighted average exercise
prices of share options are as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

i B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB REMN)

19 HERESURGHBERZS @

(b) BREZBEERNEFHTEEDOT :

2015 2014
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number exercise Number
price of options price of options
T3 BB IR T i
TEE ZHE 1TE(E ZEE
HK$ ’000 HK$ ’000
ik T’ Vokia Fi%
Outstanding at the FHIRITE
beginning of the year 0.798 39,408 0.794 42,058
Exercised during the year ~ ANF[E1T{# 0.799 (7,963) 0.740 (2,650)
Cancelled during the year ~ ZREZ % HA 0.782 (1,775) N/A -
Qutstanding at the end REZIERITEE
of the year 0.798 29,670 0.798 39,408
Exercisable at the end REFIEAITE
of the year 0.798 29,670 0.798 39,408

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for
share options exercised during the year was HK$1.03 (2014:

HK$0.96).

RNEZITEBIRERITE B 2 IEF (B 2B 1.037T
(20144 : B¥0.967T) °

<
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(LB BEMN)

19 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b)  The number and weighted average exercise
prices of share options are as follows:
(Continued)

The options outstanding at 31 December 2015 had an
exercise price of HK$0.630, HK$0.690 and HK$0.910 (2014:
HK$0.630, HK$0.690 and HK$0.910) and a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 4.2 years (2014: 5.2
years).

(c)  Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share options
granted is measured by reference to the fair value of share
options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the share
options granted is measured based on Black Scholes
model. The fair value measurement is categorised within
level 2. The contractual life of the share option is used as
an input into this model. Expectations of early exercise are
incorporated into the Black Scholes model.

Fair value of share options and assumptions:

19 RZESURGAERRS @)

b) BEREZHERMETSCEENT : (@)

2015912 531 B RIT{EREARE 2 17 E A E¥0.6307T
7 0.690 7T K B #50.910 7T (2014 4F = B #0.6307T * 8
#0.690 7T B 0.910 70 ) M INEF S T RAOFHZ 4.2
F(20144F 1 5.24F) o

(0 BREZAFERRR
HRELBREMNES ZREZ A FEDSE AR L ERE
AFEMEE - AL ERE At AT ENREHER

FHE o RFEUDH2FE - BREZANFHRIMERILIA
B ZBAR - BHRREFTENEAREHER -

BRREZ R FERER

98

Date of grant
BT EH
30 June 2008 6 October 2009 20 July 2012 18 January 2013
20086 H30H  2009F10H6H  2012F7H20A  2013F1A818H
Fair value at measurement iSEA=E PN
date HK$0.13685 870 HK$0.1129587C HK$0.09297% 1T HK$0.1025 7% 75
Share price (& HK$0.90000 % 7T HK$0.61000 7% 7T HK$0.6900/5 1T HK$0.8600 7% 7T
Exercise price T E HK$0.91000/87  HK$0.6300047C HK$0.69008 T HK$0.8600 % 7T
Expected volatility (expressed TR E (A28 IER
as weighted average volatility B NERAMET R
used in the modeliing under BRR)
the Black Scholes model) BREER (A2HEAET 36.94% 44.579% 33.073% 30.372%
Option life (expressed as R AIETSRE
weighted average life used ®T)
in the modelling under
the Black Scholes model) 3yearsF 3yearsF 3yearsF 3yearsF
Expected dividends EHRE 6.67% 8.20% 6.687% 6.687%
Risk-free interest rate ERERF %
(based on 3-year (BRIFINEESES)
Hong Kong Fund
Exchange Notes) 2.87% 0.931% 0.182% 0.182%

RAYMOND Industrial Ltd.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) 4

19 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c)  Fair value of share options and assumptions
(Continued)

The expected volatility is based on the historical volatility
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining life
of the share options), adjusted for any expected changes
to future volatility based on publicly available information.
Expected dividends are based on historical dividends.
Changes in the subjective input assumptions could materially
affect the fair value estimate.

There were no market conditions associated with the share
option grants.

20 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

i B B &t

(BB REMN)

19 RZENSURGAERRS @)

(c) BREZAFERREBRE)

T 5035 0 7 $08 0 IR AR 2 A0 39 T 64 4 5
H)3E - WRIRIB AR TGRS A &R IR O ETED
fEMIEEE - THRIR S Ty B 2 IR AT - W ABRRA
B2 EHAMHAFEZ EHEREARE -

AR 2 2 T S OR I A TR o

20 EX - RERKRE

(@)  Share capital (@) B’
(i) Issued share capital 0] ERITRA
2015 2014
Number of Number of
shares HK$ shares HK$
REZE B RS = ki
Ordinary shares, issued Ly - BRITRERE
and fully paid:
At 1 January MW1A1H 469,429,260 438,527,402 466,779,260 233,389,630
Shares issued under FR2014F3A3H
share option scheme B 31T 2 B
prior to 3 March 2014 - - 205,000 102,500
Transfer upon adoption 20143 A3 H
of new Hong Kong BN AHED]
Companies Ordinance (6228 )R
(Chapter 622) on
3 March 2014 - - - 202,962,413
Share issued under share R ek 2014 F
option scheme on or 3A3ABE®ETTZ
after 3 March 2014 B A R AR () 7,963,000 7,293,286 2,445,000 2,072,859
At 31 December W12 A318 477,392,260 445,820,688 | 469,429,260 438,527,402
—TREFH | MRBEERAE 4 99
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(LB REN)

20 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(@)  Share capital (Continued)

(i) Issued share capital (Continued)

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to
one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All ordinary
shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual
assets.

On 3 March 2014, the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622) (the “New CO”) came into effect.
The New CO abolishes the concepts of nominal (par) value,
share premium and authorised share capital for all shares
of the Hong Kong incorporated companies. All amount
received for issuing equity shares of a company should be
recorded as share capital. Pursuant to the adoption of the
New CO, the balance of share premium was transferred to
share capital.

(i) Shares issued under share option scheme

During the year ended 31 December 2015, options were
exercised to subscribe for 7,963,000 (2014: 2,650,000)
ordinary shares of the Company at a total cash consideration
of HK$6,363,830 (2014: HK$1,962,042).

20 EBXR - REERRE @)
@ RE(E)
() BBFRRE)

ERRFAABRINRERMERNORS - XHERENASE
EeE L RER-FERERR - MATEREANSERIER
BEHEEARSFHAL -

E2014F3A3H  MIBABRUEHI(F622F) ([#FEE
DANER] ] £ - IEB D RHEHIERBEEEMARRGE
FNRE - BAREREERANES - frasiTsiky
WATI BB - BERMTEESLENIRAZESEE
B o

(i) BREXTZRE

HZE2015F 12 A31 BFEE It © LAERE S 6,363,8307C
(2014 % : 751,062,042 70) 1T BB IR 8 B 7,963,000 f%
NE)E @AY (2014 FF ¢ 2,650,000 I E @AY ) ©

(iii) Terms of unexpired and unexercised share (i)  RMERZ KRB R ARITER MR BRAE
options at the end of the reporting period

Exercise 2015 2014

Exercise period price Number Number

1TEH TEE £ e

30 June 2008 to 29 June 2018 200846 A30HAZE HK$0.910 15,372,600 20,240,600
2018 6 A29H B 0.910 7T

6 October 2009 to 5 October 2019 200910 A6 HZ HK$0.630 2,800,000 3,440,000
201910 A5H 75 #0.630 7T

20 July 2012 to 19 July 2022 2012F 7 20H= HK$0.690 11,498,000 15,728,000
2022F 7 A19H 7 #0.690 7T

29,670,600 39,408,600

RAYMOND Industrial Ltd. | Annual Report 2015
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20 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 20

(Continued)

(@)  Share capital (Continued)

(iii)  Terms of unexpired and unexercised share (iii)

i B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(@ BRAE&E)

options at the end of the reporting period

(Continued)

Each option entitles the holder to subscribe for one ordinary
share in the Company. Further details of these options are

set out in note 19.

(b) Dividends

(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the

b)) BE

Company attributable to the year

BR - BERKRE (®

() FEEEMREEEXQTRREMS

(BB REMN)

REBEHMRZ KRB MR ARITENBRAE(B)

REABRAES - BRBERERBE -—RARATLER - B
ERBIEFIREN AT EREMTE19

2015 2014
HK$ HK$
ikl ok
Interim dividend declared and paid BEM RIRE 2 F RS
of 2 HK cents per ordinary share BREBERAE 21
(2014: 2 HK cents per ordinary (2014 5 - GRREBIEBE 210)
share) 9,546,845 9,378,785
Final dividend proposed after the RAREBRERZE
end of the reporting period REAR S BRI 41U
of 4 HK cents per ordinary share (2014 5 - GREBIRBE 410)
(2014 4 HK cents per ordinary
share) 19,095,690 18,777,170
Special dividend proposed after the ~ RANIREEIREZ#H Y
end of the reporting period of Nil FERIRE : &
(2014: 2 HK cents per ordinary (2014 5 : GREBIREE 210)
share) - 9,388,585
28,642,535 37,544,540

The final and special dividends proposed after the end of the
reporting period have not been recognised as liabilities at the

end of the reporting period.

BEFRRERRAE -

—T-RHEFHR |

KA SRS HIRR 3 E Kk 3 2 RS M Il B R A

FREXBARAT o

<
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R B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(LB BEMN)

20 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(b) Dividends
(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the

Company attributable to the previous financial
year, approved and paid during the year

20 EBEX - REERRE @

b KRE

(i) REFEERMREEFATRREERERFERD
BAERZAN

2015 2014
HK$ HK$
ki B
Final dividend in respect of the FFERABARFRERD
previous financial year, approved R Z A GREmR
and paid during the year, PEHE 441 (2014 4F -
of 4 HK cents per ordinary share BREBIREE 410)
(2014: 4 HK cents per ordinary
share) 19,036,890 18,740,571
Special dividend in respect of the TFEERIREAAFED
previous financial year, approved R IR R
and paid during the year, ROl (2014 4F - f®)
of 2 HK cents per ordinary share
(2014 Nil) 9,518,446 -
28,555,336 18,740,571

(c)  Nature and purpose of reserves
(i) Share premium reserve

Prior to 3 March 2014, the application of the share premium
account was governed by section 48B of the predecessor
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Chapter 32). In
accordance with the transitional provisions set out in section
37 of Schedule 11 to the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622), on 3 March 2014 any amount
standing to the credit of the share premium account has
become part of the Company’s share capital (see note
26(b)). The use of share capital as from 3 March 2014 is
governed by section 149 of the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622).

RAYMOND Industrial Ltd. | Annual Report 2015

() MREZMERE®N
() BE=nERE

20143 A3 HAIXEBRGHEN (F532FE) F48HIBEE
MERZBAHEIRE - BEEBRAEN (F622F) F
STIEMI R 11 2 BE R HERRR - F£2014F3A3HARZE
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

20 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

()

(i) Exchange reserve

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the consolidated
financial statements of foreign operations. The reserve is
dealt with in accordance with accounting policies set out in
note 2(q).

(iii)  Capital reserve

The capital reserve comprises the fair value of the actual
or estimated number of unexercised share options granted
to employees of the Group and other eligible persons
recognised in the accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for share-based payments in note 2(m).

(iv)  PRC statutory reserve

Pursuant to the laws and regulations governing the PRC
enterprises, certain of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries, which
are wholly foreign-owned enterprises, are required to allocate
at least 10% of their after-tax profit but before dividend
distribution to general reserve until the reserve has reached
50% of their registered capital. The general reserve can only
be used, upon approval by the relevant authority, to offset
accumulated losses or increase capital. Appropriation to

general reserve during the year amounted to approximately
HK$834,800 (2014: HK$2,378,876).

(d)

At 31 December 2015, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity shareholders of the
Company was HK$45,522,285 (2014: HK$37,288,751).
After the end of the reporting period, the directors proposed
a final dividend of 4 HK cents and a special dividend of Nil
(2014: a final dividend of 4 HK cents and a special dividend
of 2 HK cents per ordinary share) totaling HK$19,095,690
(2014: HK$28,165,755). These dividends have not been
recognised as liabilities at the end of the reporting period.

Distributability of reserves

(VBB REMN)

20 EBEX - REERRE @

(0 REZMHEERBNG@E
(i) ERREE

IE R R R IRK BB LBINETS 2 47 6 TS S B TE
REZR - RHEREBEEN S BERME2(0) B2 -

(i) EXREE

M A B TR R IR 2 5T BURKT FE 2(m) SRV A B AR B E iR
FRAEEEREMEER AT ZEE S M RITHFERRE
HENNTFER-R -

(iv) HEEERE

KEBREARLEME EERBTHCEZER - AEE
ZHENBARBINEBELE  AERI10% 0 2FiiE
BASMEERER BEEzREHEFMERNS0% A
IFe ERBERALEEBE BILERARIEE R EENE
MER - AFEEHRE L BRHEE 2 BEL AE 834,800
(20144 : B 2,378,8767T) °

(d) FAIDERHEE

MR2015F 12 A1 B EFH A DR T AAGIRR  EESRE
578 B 45,522,285 7L (2014 F « 7 #37,288,7517C ) © A
AREHRE  EFTEZRE RSB A SHEE 41
MERIREE  # (2014 F « SR B RBEBE 4R
RIRE BISEE24l) - AFHE% 19,095,690 7T (2014 5 : B
28,165,755) - RAMEHRELR BERERAAE -

“T-AEFHR | MREEARRR 4
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(LB BEMN)
20 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(Continued)
(e)

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

Capital management

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder returns and the advantages and security
afforded by a sound capital position, and makes judgements
to the capital structure in light of changes in economic
conditions.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its
capital structure on the basis of a net debt-to-adjusted
capital ratio. For this purpose the Group defines net debt
as total debt (which includes trade and other payables) plus
unaccrued proposed dividends. Adjusted capital comprises
all components of equity less unaccrued proposed
dividends.

During 2015, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged
from 2014, was to maintain the net debt-to-adjusted capital
ratio of no more than 35% (2014: 40%). In order to maintain
or adjust the ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares, return
capital to shareholders, raise new debt financing or sell
assets to reduce debt.

RAYMOND Industrial Ltd. | Annual Report 2015

20 EBEX - REERRE @

(e) EXREHE
REEERBIEAEERANURBARER V BELEY
Be ) - DAMD EL RSB MR SRR 4 [0 3R & A Efn AR B A 3R
HH - UERBERRERBKT R HBERSERASE
AL ERES o

AEETHLERRIEEAGEBUERT FEE O HAA
R RERZE2EHAEERNNR  REKLERBR TEL
WENEHR DB 2 A -

HTEBY -2 AEESNFREHEREERLXRR
HERHERRE - it ARERBEBE(BRESR
L BRIE MM SRR E) TR ERIRERE - &
EENBREMEEmR T EHERIRERE -

Bt

iz

R 20154 » AN 2 RESANFE 2014 F— 1% - REFHHFR
(B 8L B AR Y L ) T8 35% (2014 4F : 40%) ° BT #E
FNFBLH - NEE A EHZRERNY TRRZBRE - #
TR - RERATRR - SENEERENLERE
PURARIA o
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BRE M
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(LB HEN)
20 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 20 EBEXR- - RERRE®
(Continued)
3 fe =
(e) Capital management (Continued) () BEFEEM)
The net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio at 31 December 2015 20154 K 2014412 A 31 B 2 F B E 2 EAER A ML
and 2014 was as follows: T
2015 2014
HK$ HKS$
R B
Current liabilities: mENBIE
Trade and other payables 2 5 RHEMEIRIE 173,683,542 199,430,808
Add: Proposed dividends hn o EEIRERE 19,095,690 28,165,755
Net debt B8EFE 192,779,232 227,596,563
Total equity BRELS 564,392,636 596,248,470
Less: Proposed dividends /)I D EEIRERR R (19,095,690) (28,165,755)
Adjusted capital KRB ER 545,296,946 568,082,715
Net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio F B EHE AR AR LB 35% 40%

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject
to externally imposed capital requirements.

2] COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2015 not
provided for in the consolidated financial statements were as
follows:

ARBREMBRARHTEZIRBBERBRNTE

21 AR

R2015F 12 A 31 BER G M RE R G IRBH AR &A%

T

2015 2014
HK$ HK$
ik Vokia
Contracted for: BE4
- Purchase of equipment — BEREMEA
and moulds 5,458,347 7,984,811

—T-RHEFHR |

FREXBARAT o

<
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(LB BEMN)
22 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and foreign
currency risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s
business. The Group’s exposure to risks and the financial
risk management policies and practices used by the Group
to manage these risks are described below.

(@)

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to cash and
cash equivalents and trade debtors. The maximum exposure
to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each
financial asset in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Credit risk and concentration risk

Substantially all the Group’s cash and cash equivalents are
deposited in financial institutions in Hong Kong and the PRC.
The credit risk is limited as the majority of counterparties
are financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit rating agencies or stated-controlled
financial institutions with good reputations.

In respect of trade debtors, management has a credit policy
in place and the exposure to the credit risk is monitored on
an ongoing basis. Individual credit evaluations are performed
on all customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of
making payments when due and current ability to pay, and
take into account information specific to the customer as
well as pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Trade debtors are due within 30 to 120
days from the date of billing. Normally, the Group does not
obtain collateral from customers. Management considers the
aggregate risks arising from the possibility of credit losses
are limited and to be acceptable.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer. The default
risks of the industry and country in which customers operate
also have an influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent.
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has a certain
concentration of credit risk as 27% (2014: 17%); and 74%
(2014: 85%) of the trade debtors was due from the largest
customer and the five largest customers respectively.
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22 HXEEREERAFE

FE B2ndl MERINERRENAEEN—KE
BERRESL - BLRR T MY BRREEAEE N
EEBRRMERRE T -

@ FEERRBREPEE
AEENEERREIERARELACEEHERESHE
BA - BAEERBZEEXZIINGETBRAKRFEE
WIEEERMEME -

AEEEEZRERRNEEFERAE - REFANGERKZE
ARTETHEE E2RIUEZEERREERERAX
ZHESGNHRERREETERBIREERTZNE
W R BRI S 2 RFEBHMHHE -

HREZEBAME  EEEERENEERR X EFE
EEMASNERERR - HRAEERBBETEESR
ZEPHEETEMNEER G - HEFHETEHEEFP N
ERHR 2 BERCHEMRENENEN  AEREFHNE
FEMMEFPHMEMNEERENEN - BZRIGARE
HEREE Bi#5H30-120 B EIE - iE— A 2 UK BR KA
B HF2EFENIER TEAEABES - AEE KR
TEREFWEEMD - HEAS MW BEEERSHE
EzEERREL 2 RFTRBAR N ATER

AEBEGZEERR  FEXZZFP2ENBEGHAY
2 XPREMEZTERBERCBERRTEZEEFEER
% MR ERERD c RAREHR - 2EENRAAER
RE SEBATKIE27% (2014 4F : 17%) N 74% (2014 4F :
65%) : @ MEX—TERENEEETRRE -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

22 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(@) Credit risk and concentration risk (Continued)

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade debtors are set out
in note 14.

(b)

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management, including the short term
investment of cash surpluses. The Group’s policy is to
regularly monitor its liquidity requirements to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial institutions to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

Liquidity risk

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s
financial liabilities which are based on the contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on
rates current at the end of the reporting period) and the
earliest date the Group can be required to pay:

(BB REMN)

22 BXEREERAFEE
) EERBREPEREE)

ERESEBACEERRESEME14FHE -

(b) ETRBUREE
AEEET2ENEGERAALSERGEREAE A
ERERCBHBERENERARNRETL - AEH
CEREATHERRE RERRABMET R - UHRELA
BRANSHBRAMSHESR Y BS  WENHLEH
REEREBUETE, -

TRINEAREZTEMSRABRRERRZHBTE
WERFIS - ERERAHN LRBMBRZRER (BHER
BREZME  KWEIFHMNEEENBERR - stEZ
ME) RAKEZFFEER AHAE

2015 2014

Total Total
contractual Within contractual Within
undiscounted 6 months undiscounted 6 months
cash flow oron cash flow oron
Carrying  #iHEEH demand Carying  HEHRAH demand
amount WEEHR  6EART amount  KUEERE  6EAAL
IREE ZBER  EXERR REE LEER  ERERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT AR BETT AR
Trade and other payables BARAMENEE 173,684 173,684 173684 | 199,431 199,431 199,431

In order to manage the liquidity demands above, at 31
December 2015, HK$244,472,180 (2014: HK$213,008,820)
of the Group’s assets, was held as cash that is considered
readily realisable.

AHRFEELMESREE K KN20156F12 318 &
SEFEKSMEIR 2 IREMNEE BB 244,472,180 7T
(2014 % : 7% 213,008,820 7T) °

“T-AEFHR | MREEARRR 4
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(LB BEMN)

22  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from cash
and cash equivalents which were contracted at short-term
variable rates and expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk. The Group’s interest rate profile as monitored by
management is set out in (i) below.

22 BHEREERAFEE)

() FIZEBS

AEBZNXRARTIERE MRS FHEER ZOEEMT
BHERIIBAEEERSRBENERR - AREZH =X
BRI EREEELHI ()T

(i) Interest rate risk (i) T == [ ez
2015 2014

Effective Effective

interest interest

rate rate

% %
BRAIE HK$’000 HRF & HK$’000
% BET T % BT T
Fixed rate bank deposits ~ #R177E EA7F 5k [E /E 7 % 0.55 147,716 1.41 74,403
Variable rate bank deposits  $R7TE BiTF FU% B 0.10 94,844 0.17 124,210

(ii) Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2015, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, would increase/
decrease the Group’s profit after tax and retained earnings
by approximately HK$886,000 (2014: HK$1,098,000)
respectively. Other components of equity would not be
affected (2014: HK$NIl) by changes in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred
at the end of the reporting period and had been applied to
the exposure to interest rate risk for financial instruments
in existence at that date. The 100 basis point increase
or decrease represents management’s assessment of
a reasonably possible change in interest rates over the
period until the next annual reporting date. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2014.
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R2015F 12 A31 HEMBEMB L AZEFTENBR
T o HEF— AR PRI, R A 10028 TF 0 DRI,
AR E 2 BREEFIE R RS EFIELO D 5 886,000
JC(2014 4 : #1,098,0007T) - MRS T F| L& H)
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22 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d) Foreign currency risk
(i) Foreign currency transactions

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
sales and expense transactions that are denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the operations
to which they relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are
primarily United States Dollar and British Pound.

(i) Recognised assets and liabilities

In respect of trade receivables and payables held in
currencies other than the functional currency of the
operations to which they relate, the Group ensures that the
net exposure is kept to an acceptable level, by buying or
selling foreign currencies at spot rates where necessary to
address short-term imbalances.

(iii)  The following table details the Group’s exposure at
the end of the reporting period to currency risk arising
from recognised assets or liabilities denominated in
a currency other than the functional currency of the
entity to which they relate.

22

(d)
0]

EEREENR ATEE)

SN LR

RS

(BB REMN)

AEBTZHRNUAZFREEBNEEEUIN2ERTIE
ZWAFZ B ZAAEINER R - BREEARZEE T

(i) CRIALEREE

ERUNBBZNEEBUINZERBAEZHME S RE L
R ARESELZRNEHN &R QRE

PE =B ASKE HIMNE - HER
RE -

(iii)

W B

R

BeRBE—ETERN

TRIVRAEER R E HRETE IR RER AT
EEBINM—BERIIENEEXABEMAERY

B ER o

2015 2014
United United

States British States British

Dollars Pounds Dollars Pounds

£ e ETT R

’000 ’000 ‘000 ‘000

o F &5 T T4

Trade and other receivables & 5 N E fib fE U BR 18 21,383 201 22,156 491

Cash and cash equivalents IR& KRIBGEEIER 27,656 310 14,384 130

Trade and other payables & 5 & E b fE(FBRIE (7,720) - (8,450) -
Net exposure arising from MR Z EE R
recognised assets and BEMBUFE

liabilities 41,319 511 28,090 621

—T-AEFH | AIREEERRAF 4
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22 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d) Foreign currency risk (Continued)
(iv)  Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the approximate change in the
Group’s profit after tax and retained earnings in response to
reasonably possible changes in the foreign exchange rates
to which the Group has significant exposure at the end of
the reporting period.

22 BiIREREERERAFE®

(d) MRS (8)
(iv) BRESN

TREEBEASEERARERNRAAZEARBR CERLZE
AR R ENH IR TIR B IR AR BAER 2 A EE

2015 2014
Effect Effect
Increase/ on profit Increase/ on profit
(decrease) in after tax and (decrease) in after tax and
foreign retained foreign retained
exchange earnings exchange earnings
rate HERBZ rate HEREIE
E &M BEARRE BEE &3 0, A AR
OR2) Bz & R ) B2
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
British Pounds ES 5% 247 5% 328
(5%) (247) (5%) (328)

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table
represent an aggregation of the effects on each of the Group
entities’ profit after tax and retained earnings measured in
the respective functional currencies, translated into Hong
Kong Dollar at the exchange rate ruling as at the end of the
reporting period for presentation purposes.
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22 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d) Foreign currency risk (Continued)
(iv)  Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that
the change in foreign exchange rates occurred at the end
of the reporting period and applied to each of the Group
entities’ exposure to currency risk for non-derivative financial
instruments in existence at that date, and that all other
variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant. In
this respect, it is assumed that the pegged rate between
the Hong Kong Dollar and the United States Dollar would
be materially unaffected by any changes in movement in
value of the United States Dollar against other currencies.
The percentage of increase and decrease in foreign
exchange rate represents the management’s assessment of
reasonably possible changes in foreign exchange rates over
the period until the next annual reporting date. The analysis
is performed on the same basis for 2014.

(e) Fair values

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially
different from their fair value as at 31 December 2015 and
2014.

23  MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

() Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group
represents amounts paid to the Company’s executive
directors as disclosed in note 7.

(BB REMN)

22 BIREREERAFE®

(d) MRS ()
(iv) BREDIH(E)

FRESTHBRREXTSEHNBEPRREL  WEARE
EEERANZANETFEZHFITESRTAMAR 28K
Rk - TR R A 2 E = CCERN R ) R TE - it
RRABTAXTZHAEX G I GRARTHIREMER 2
BYHMIREATE M2V 2B EEEEMHAERTRE
ET—AFEREHRIHE 2 SIBA e ZE) - ETHIT
ZEFEE 2014 FATRIE 2 ERAER -

() 2AFE
FiEemI Az ABRSFEEEN 2015 F & 2014F 12 A 31
HBZ AFEZESEKRFE -

23 RBEBAEZEARRZ N

@ FIEEEEBAE#HS

EEIBEREA BN BELN AL TNTEERIET
B -

2015 2014

HK$ HK$

TR ieokia

Short-term employee benefits pSEL == EEw 10,463,436 10,638,283
Post-employment benefits BIEAEF 655,750 592,500
11,119,186 11,230,783

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note 5(a)).

RFINEIRTER B A NI 5(@) ©
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23

(b)

(i)

(9)

24

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES
(Continued)

Other related party transactions

On May 2014, the Company entered into two
agreements with RJW Technology Company
Limited (“RJW Technology”) to acquire six precise
electrochemical machining machines (“PECM
Machines”) and the proprietary technologies,
intellectual properties and technical information
in relation to the PECM Machines (“PECM
Technologies”) for a total cash consideration of
HK$12,000,000 and HK$4,000,000, respectively.
RJW Technology is owned as to 50% by each of
the two executive directors, Mr. Wong, John Ying
Man and Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin. Details of
the two agreements are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 12 May 2014.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, no (2014:
five) PECM Machines and PECM Technologies
with a value of HK$NIl (2014: HK$9,050,000) and
HK$4,000,000 (2014: HK$NIl) respectively had been
transferred to the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the
Group sold a motor vehicle with carrying value of
HK$79,000 to Mr. Mok, Kin Hing, an executive
director, for a cash consideration of HK$120,000.

Balances with related parties are disclosed
in the Company’s statement of financial
position contained in note 26(a).

NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

After the end of the reporting period, the directors proposed
a final dividend. Further details are disclosed in note 20(b).
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ML cERARZ KGR

Hitpams 5 EE

2014589 - AR FIERIW M AT (TRIW
Bl 1) TS M % - MRIWRTIEE SN &BHRE
fbB NI H# ([PECM#ERS ) RGBT E(ENT
e BRI - AFRERE KT E R ("PECM BT ")
S AR S 5 R A 12,000,000 7T & E
4,000,000 ° RIWH T A BIH (AL ITES » &R
BAERENBEES BHEAR50%IE - 1D HE

ZHEHBERARAT2015F5 A12B 7 BE R

HZE2015F 12 A31 BIEFE - AEEZ #2014
&F 54 09,050,0007T) FERE(LE I THF
B BB T# 2 FF 1T & % ¥ 4,000,000 7T
(2014 6 : ##) -

HE2014F12A31BIEFE  ZEBNREEE
75 120,000 70 H & FIHEEB # 79,000 T2 /A8
FHRITEREEEEE o

R S 2 EREEAR QRN MR R R Z
BisE 26(a) PIHE -

AR EHERRARSEE

AHEHMERL EFZRRBIRBL - FHERME

20(0) ©



25 SUBSIDIARIES’ INFORMATION

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) 4

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities
of the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless

otherwise stated.

25 KEARER
HEAEEY M AERARZMBARFBEOT - B
BHRIBIL - FTEA 2 AR LA -

i B B &t

(BB REMN)

Particulars of Proportion of
issued and paid ownership interest held
Place of Place of up capital by the Company Principal
Name of company incorporation operation BERTR b O activities
NEER Bl g BRRAZFE BRER TEEHR
Guangzhou Conquest Electric The PRC The PRC Registered capital N/A (2014: 100%) Manufacture and sale
Company Limited e i US$7,390,000 (20144 1 100%) of electrical home
(notes 1 and 2) FHEA appliances
BHRIRABE 7,390,000% 7T RERHE
BBRAR(HE1R2) FHESR
Mass Top Corporation The British Hong Kong 1 share of US$1 100% Property holding
Virgin Islands Y TRERRER1ET REWE
EERNS
Raymond (Panyu Nansha) Electrical The PRC The PRC Registered capital 100% Manufacture and sale
Appliances Development Company H i US$22,380,000 of electrical home
Limited (note 1) FMER appliances
MR (EBED) BEER 22,380,000% 7T HEREE
ARAA (FrE) FHES
Notes: BisE -
1) The statutory financial statements of Guangzhou Conquest (1) ENRIKAERERAGBEE2015F3 9B L RFIR

Electric Company Limited and Raymond (Panyu Nansha)
Electrical Appliances Development Company Limited for the
financial period ended 9 March 2015 and the financial year
ended 31 December 2015 respectively, prepared under
generally accepted accounting principles applicable in the
PRC, have been audited by E/NZEEEFTAIEKFTERA

Al

@) Guangzhou Conquest Electric Company Limited was
deregistered during the year ended 31 December 2015.

(HBmY)BRERARAREE2015F12A31HIEZ
FEPHBRZTRGT TR EEhEMNED SR
R EEFTARAREZ ©

@) ENRIXBERERATN2015F12 431 AL 2 FE

B

—T-RHEFHR |

FREZERLE 4 |13
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26 FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE

26 AATEHBEER

COMPANY
(@) Statement of financial position @ FBRRR
2015 2014
HK$ HKS$
bt Nidact
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB NRE 720,610 959,655
Investments in subsidiaries B AR E 173,703,041 231,357,015
174,423,651 232,316,670
Current assets REEE
Inventories BE 2,177,159 2,612,146
Trade and other receivables 2 5 R EH A EUERIA 172,612,128 182,553,981
Amounts due from subsidiaries JEU T B x =1BRIA 46,402,647 88,403,003
Tax recoverable AR EIFIR 1,549,617 -
Cash and cash equivalents BeMReEHEER 219,297,922 114,286,526
442,039,473 387,855,656
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables 2 5 RHEMEIRIE 101,391,232 114,634,768
Amounts due to subsidiaries JEAHI B A =1BRIE 19,888,723 22,317,444
Dividends payable FERTAR B 203,787 155,167
Tax payable FEBLIR - 2,480,943
121,483,742 139,588,322
Net current assets REBEEFE 320,555,731 248,267,334
Total assets less current HEERRBEE
liabilities 494,979,382 480,584,004
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities BELEHIBEE 148,242 148,242
NET ASSETS BEFAE 494,831,140 480,435,762
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARL HE
Share capital &N 445,820,688 438,527,402
Other reserves HAbfEE 49,010,452 41,908,360
TOTAL EQUITY BRER 494,831,140 480,435,762

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors

on 23 March 2016.

Wilson Wong Kin Lae
H2ERA
Director

EF

RAYMOND Industrial Ltd.
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26 FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 26 ZAAQTRBMEER @)
COMPANY (Continued)
. . : R ] %48 B X >
(b) Details of changes in the Company’s (P) N ERE DA AR 8 Bl A x4 R R 4D S ) B A
individual components of reserve during the RINBEFS -
year:
Share Share Capital Retained Total
capital premium reserve earnings equity
BRA A GRE REEF BEXfGE BitER
Note HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
itzx i ot B ot ki
At 1 January 2014 R201451 A1 BER 233,389,630 202,907,615 4,887,724 22,091,489 463,276,458
Changes in equity for 2014: 2014 FEE2E .
Profit and total comprehensive AEEH L2 RS
income for the year - - - 43316,618 43,316,618
Dividends approved in BAERS
respect of the
~ current year - K% 20(0)i) - - ~ (0378785  (9,378,785)
- previous year - % 20(b)(ii) - - - (18,740,571)  (18,740,571)
Shares issued under share BR2014F3A3BE
option scheme prior to BT BIRER D
3 March 2014
— gross proceeds — iz 20(a)i) 102,500 34,150 - - 136,650
—transfer from capital reserve - AERREER - 20,648 (20,648) - -
Transfer upon adoption of new k20143 A3H
Hong Kong Companies TAERR A
Ordinance (Chapter 622) (5622 )&%
on 3 March 2014 20()() 202,962,413  (202,962,413) . - -
Shares issued under share Rekg R 201453 A3 H
option scheme on or after B#1T2 BIRER R
3 March 2014
- gross proceeds — Elfs 20(a)(i) 1,825,392 - - - 1,825,392
—transfer from capital reserve  — MEAREEY 247 467 - (247 467) - -
At 31 December 2014 A20145F12 A 31 B 48 438,527,402 - 4,619,609 37,288,751 480,435,762
At 1 January 2015 R2015%1 51 B&R 438,527,402 - 4,619,609 37,288,751 480,435,762
Changes in equity for 2015: 2015 FHEZRE
Profit and total comprehensive RERM K
income for the year PHEKEER - - - 46,133,729 46,133,729
Dividends approved in respect of the  #t RS,
~ current year - A% 20(b)() - - - (9,546,845)  (0,546,845)
— previous year - #F 20(b)(ii) - - - (28,555,336) (28,555,336)
Shares issued under share FElRER BT
option scheme Z&in
- gross proceeds - Ea 20(a)(i) 6,363,830 - - - 6,363,830
— transfer from capital reserve - MELRREEY 929,456 - (929,456) - -
Cancellation of share options BB AR - - (201,986) 201,986 -
At 31 December 2015 M20155 12 A 31 B 48 445,820,688 - 3,488,167 45,522,285 494,831,140
—T-AEFH | AIREEERRAF 4
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27 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

The methods, estimates and judgements the directors used
in applying the Group’s accounting policies have a significant
impact on the Group’s financial position and operating
results. Some of the accounting policies require the Group
to apply estimates and judgements, on matters that are
inherently uncertain. The critical accounting judgements
in applying the Group’s accounting policies are described
below.

() Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-
line basis or reducing balance basis over the estimated
useful lives. The Group reviews annually the useful life of an
asset and its residual value, if any. The depreciation expense
for future periods is adjusted if there are significant changes
from the previous estimation.

(b) Impairments

In considering the impairment loss that may be required
for certain property, plant and equipment, interests in
leasehold land held for own use under operating leases, and
investments in subsidiaries, the recoverable amount of the
asset needs to be determined. The recoverable amount is
the greater of the fair value less costs of disposal and the
value in use. It is difficult to estimate precisely the fair value
price because quoted market prices for the assets may not
be readily available. In determining the value in use, expected
cash flows generated by the asset are discounted to their
present value, which requires significant judgement relating
to items such as level of revenue and amount of operating
costs. The Group uses all readily available information in
determining an amount that is a reasonable approximation
of the recoverable amount, including estimates based on
reasonable and supportable assumptions and projections of
items such as revenue and operating costs.

| Annual Report 2015
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27 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts are assessed
and provided based on the directors’ regular review of
the ageing analysis and an evaluation of collectability. A
considerable level of judgement is exercised by the directors
when assessing the credit worthiness and past collection
history of each individual customer.

An increase or decrease in the above impairment loss would
affect the operating results in the year and in future years.

(c)  Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement
on the future tax treatment of certain transactions and
interpretation of tax rules. The Group carefully evaluates
the tax implications of transactions and tax provisions are
set up accordingly. The tax treatment of transactions is
reconsidered periodically to take into account all changes in
tax legislation.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses not
yet used and temporary deduction differences. Those
deferred tax assets can only be recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future profit will be available against
which the unused tax credit can be utilised, consequently
management’s judgement is required to assess the
probability of future taxable profits. Management’s
assessment is constantly reviewed and additional deferred
tax assets are recognised if it becomes probable that
future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

(VBB REMN)

27  EEHhEETRHE @)

AREBRFEEIRETE HETZRE DN KA Y B FHEE R
ZERREBRETAR BEFERHEEBREFZEEER
KB e MIRC sk 1T — R E 2 HIE -

HaUREEEIE ISR DGR E AR BN FE -

(c) FrE®
BEMEREEIREE TR ARRMBEE 2 TS RE
KR ZRE - AEEBEMTERIZBEHE - Wi
MARRBIERE - ZER B2 HIERIE TR - G
REEAR 2 a2 -

RIERBEET AR EERINBERZ N IEEEE
R o AN FIRTEN IR E EER R HOE N A5 7] BIEE M
ABRERREAI SRR @R EEEAN G RKE
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27 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

()  Income taxes (Continued)

As mentioned in note 12, the PRC tax authorities had
initiated a transfer pricing audit on a subsidiary of the
Company in the PRC in respect of the years ended
31 December 2002 to 2011. The Group has been in
discussions with the PRC tax authorities with a view to
conclude the transfer pricing audit. At 31 December 2015, a
total provision of HK$12,556,000 (2014: HK$7,572,000) has
been made against the potential tax adjustment estimated
by management relating to the transfer pricing audit. Due to
uncertainty inherent in the transfer pricing audit, its outcome
could be different from the amount provided and such
difference would impact the income tax provision in the year
in which any determination is made.

(d)  Inventory provision

The Group performs regular reviews of the carrying amounts
of inventories with reference to aged inventories analyses,
projections of expected future saleability of goods and
management experience and judgement. Based on these
reviews, write-down of inventories will be made when the
carrying amounts of inventories fall below their estimated net
realisable value. Due to changes in customers’ performance,
actual saleability of goods may be different from estimates
and profit or loss could be affected by differences from
estimates.

(e) Share-based payments

The estimate of the fair value of the share options granted
to employees and other eligible persons measured by
professional valuers based on the Black Scholes model with
modifications to reflect the impact of vesting periods and
exercise patterns on the option value. The accuracy of the
above estimates could affect the amount of share-based
payments transactions recognised in profit or loss.

| Annual Report 2015
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28  POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEVW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FORTHEYEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2015

Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued a few amendments
and new standards which are not yet effective for the
year ended 31 December 2015 and which have not been
adopted in these consolidated financial statements. Of these
developments, the following relate to matters that may be
relevant to the Group’s consolidated financial statements:

(BB REMN)

28 EZE20I5F 1283 BLEFEECHEMGER
EM2IER] - HEARBREZEBERE

HEUHSRAVBRRTEZH  BESTRASEES
ZIE(E:]  EARZE - BREZ20156F12 A3181E
FEMAER - BINARLEELREMISRERED - FEiEL
&30 - AN AR BB RAEE 2 & MR A ISR -

Effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after
RELT BHARR
RUUE B HBENR

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2012 — 2014 cycle
SEEBBU SRS AR 2012 E 2014 FAH

Amendments to HKAS 1, Disclosure initiative
BB EREE]  FEHEE

1 January 2016
20161 H1H

1 January 2016
20161 H1H

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38, Clarification of acceptable

methods of depreciation and amortisation

Foast2RI16 M 381&R] - Al EZITE Kl )7 S\ H MEA

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

EEIBIMELERN5 - BERPEKZWA

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

FEWHREENO- TR T A

HKFRS 16, Leases
BB BHRELER16-1HE

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments and new standards
is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far it
has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have
a significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

1 January 2016
20161 H1H

1 January 2017
20171 A1 H

1 January 2018
20181 A1 H

1 January 2019
20191 A1 H

EEOHALKE LT ERBILFERT RN ERE LG R
REBEZEE - 125 2R RTRMULFERT ~ FHER
BRBTEEARREZGEMBREENEATE
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Five Years Financial Summary

IEHERE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR #REHEHER
LOSS
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BT T EET T BT T
Revenue N 1,175,520 1,278,079 1,182,806 1,034,875 088,449
Profit before taxation B AT 24,256 59,989 44,723 44,169 44,745
Income tax FT18%: (6,096) (12,988) (11,718) (15,883) (8,417)
Profit for the year and /N gy et
attributable to equity R B2 S K
shareholders of the
Company 18,160 47,001 33,005 28,286 36,328
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL #REH B E
POSITION
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BET T BT T BT T BT T
Property, plant and VI - BB R
equipment 222,924 210,526 196,864 196,514 165,693
Interests in leasehold land ~ TRIBE L EHH1E
held for own use under BRZ TR
operating leases 10,077 9,658 9,538 9,076 8,142
Deferred tax assets FRIETIBE 2 9,224 8,996 7,987 7,476 8,346
Net current assets RBEEFE 291,487 329,785 381,318 383,356 382,380
Deferred tax liabilities EIERIEAE (207) (193) (182) (174) (168)
Net assets BEEFE 533,505 558,772 595,525 596,248 564,393
Share capital (RN 216,104 216,487 233,390 438,527 445,821
Reserves ] 317,401 342,285 362,135 157,721 118,572
Total equity attributable to A2 AIAE FFE(G %S
equity shareholders of
the Company 533,505 558,772 595,525 596,248 564,393

RAYMOND Industrial Ltd.

| Annual Report 2015
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